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Washington, DC 20549

Dear Sir or Madam:

Canadian Utilities Limited - File No.: 82-34744
Exemption Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(h)

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
enclosed is a copy of the following:

Form 52-109FT2 — Certification of Interim Filings by President and CEO

Form 52-108FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings by Senior Vice President and CFO
Consolidated Financial Statements for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
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Earnings
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right-hand corner of each unbound page and of the first page of each bound document.
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FILE NO. 82-34744

Form 52-109F2 - Certification of Interim Filings

I, Karcn M. Watson, Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer of Canadian Utilities
Limited, certify that:

1. 1 have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Canadian Utilities
Limited, (the issuer) for the interim period ending June 30, 2007;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is nccessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was madc, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings;

3. Bascd on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings;

4. The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

{(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared; and

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the
issucr’s GAAP; and

5. 1 have caused the issuer to disclose in the interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that
has matcrially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: July 26, 2007

Original signed by Karen M. Watson

Senior Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer
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Form 52-109F2 - Certification of Interim Filings

I, Nancy C. Southern, President & Chief Executive Officer of Canadian Utilities Limited, certify
that:

1. 1 have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Canadian Utilities
Limited, (the issuer) for the interim period ending June 30, 2007,

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statcment of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings;

4. The issuer's other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

{a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the interim filings are being prepared; and

(b} designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the
issuer’s GAAP; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the interim MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that

has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: July 26, 2007

Original signed by Nancy C. Southern

President & Chief Executive Officer
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006

{Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Revenues § 560.3 § 5634 $1,257.9 $1,205.4
Costs and cxpenses

Natural gas supply 6.2 10.3 9.3 15.0
Purchased power 11.4 10.6 25.2 23.6
| Operation and maintenance 2303 2324 470.9 468.5
Selling and administrative 49.7 43.0 92.1 86.9
Depreciation and amortization 833 91.9 175.2 179.6
Interest 4 42.9 48.8 85.5 §9.7
Interest on non-recourse long term debt 10.8 i1.9 22.8 243
Franchise fees 34.7 27.7 93.2 89.6
469.3 476.6 974.2 977.2
91.0 26.8 283.7 228.2
Interest and other income 6 11.4 13.2 31.6 22,3
Earnings before income taxes 102.4 100.0 315.3 250.5
Income taxes 4 12.4 20.8 81.8 75.5
90.0 79.2 233.5 175.0
Dividends on equity preferred shares 8.9 8.0 17.7 17.9
Farnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1
Retained earnings at beginning of period as restated 5 1,909.8 1,771.8 1,813.3 1,721.9
1,990.9 1,842.0 2,029.1 1,879.0
Dividends on Class A and Class B shares 39.5 36.2 77.7 72.4
Purchase of Class A shares - 25.5 - 26.3
Retained earnings at end of period $1,951.4 $1,780.3 $1,951.4 $1,780.3
Earnings per Class A and Class B share 9 $ 0.65 5 056 5§ 1L.72 $ 124
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share 9 $ 0.64 $ 0.55 $ L7l § 123

Dividends paid per Class A and Class B share 9 $ 0315 $ 0.285 $ 0.62 $ 057




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

June 30 December 31
Note 2007 2006 2006
(Unaudited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term investments 3 5 813.0 $ 904.0 $ 7988
Accounts receivable 292.8 251.1 362.3
Inventories 88.6 80.7 96.5
Future income taxes 3.0 0.3 -
Regulatory assets 6.5 14.8 13.3
Derivative assels 10 0.5 - -
Prepaid expenses 30.8 23.0 23.6
1,235.2 1,273.9 1,294.5
Property, plant and equipment 5,481.6 5,255.8 5,426.1
Regulatory assets 47.3 29.2 43.2
Derivative assets 10 69.7 - -
Other assets 197.7 244.0 229.7
$7,031.5 $6,802.9 $6,993.5
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics § 317.0 $ 276.0 $ 3388
Income taxes payable 4 19.1 52.2 22.7
Future income laxes - - 0.3
Regulatory liabitities ' 11.5 4.5 0.5
Derivative liabilities 10 1.0 - -
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 7 68.9 53.3 59.3
417.5 386.0 421.6
Future income taxes 4 200.0 168.9 194.7
Regulatory liabilities 143.0 160.7 148.8
Derivative liabilities 10 1.8 - -
Deferred credits 10 278.2 251.9 229.0
Long term debt 7 2,399.3 2,266.3 24115
Non-recourse long term debt 7 510.5 650.1 626.7
Equity preferred shares 8 625.0 636.5 636.5
Class A and Class B share owners' equity
Class A and Class B shares 9 517.2 517.8 516.0
Contributed surplus 1.6 0.9 1.2
Retained earnings 1,951.4 1,780.3 1,804.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income 11 (14.0) {16.7) 1.1
2,456.2 2,282.3 2,324.7
$7,031.5 $6,802.9 $6,993.5




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Threec Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Operating activities
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares $ 811 $ 702 §215.8 $157.1
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 83.3 91.9 175.2 179.6

Future income taxes 2.1 (19.8) 0.6 (16.9}

Deferred availability incentives (3.6) (3.8) 3.0 8.6

TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 3 2.9) (5.3) (5.9) 5.3

Other 7.5 29 6.8 8.1
Funds generated by operations 163.3 136.1 395.5 3418
Changes in non-cash working capital (15.2) 13.0 79.0 46.0
Cash flow from operations 148.1 149.1 474.5 387.8
Investing activitics
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (148.1) (128.5) (271.8) (240.7)
Costs on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3.3) 2.5 (3.8) 2.7
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to

plant 16.9 15.1 36.7 40.8
Non-current deferred electricity costs (L) 10.1 2.4 15.4
Changes in non-cash working capital (1.3) 13.0 (15.5) 8.3)
Income tax reasscssment 4 - (17.0) - (17.0)
Other (7.4) (1.6) (11.8) (2.6)

(144.2) (111.4) (268.6) (215.1)
Financing activitics
Issue of long term debt - - - 355
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt 3 (66.1) {10.5) (91.2) (30.3)
Issue of equity preferred shares by subsidiary 8 115.0 - 115.0 -
Redemption of equity preferred shares 8 (126.5) - (126.5) -
Net issue (purchase) of Class A sharcs 0.6 (27.6) 1.1 (27.7
Dividends paid to Class A and Class B share owners 39.5) (36.2) (77.1D {(72.4)
Other (4.3) (0.6) 3.3) (0.8)
(120.8) (74.9) (182.6) (95.7)

Foreign eurrency translation (8.7) 1.8 (9.1} 2.6
Cash position t
Increase (decrease) (125.6) (35.4) 14.2 79.6
Beginning of period 938.6 9354 798.8 824.4
End of period $813.0 $904.0 $ 813.0 $904.0

) Cash position consists of cash and short term investments, and includes $129.0 million (2006 - $157.0 million)
which is only available for use in joint ventures (see Note 3).




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Miilions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares $81.1 $70.2 $215.8 $157.1
Other comprehensive income, net of income taxes:
Cash flow hedges 1! i1 - 3.6 -
Foreign currency translation adjustment 11 (13.7) 1.5 (13.4) 1.5
(10.6) 1.5 (9.8) 1.5

Comprehensive income $70.5 §71.7 $206.0 5158.6




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007
(Unaudited, Tabular Amounts in Millions of Canadian Dollars)

1. Summary of sigrificant accounting policies
Financial statement presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
related notes included in the Corporation’s 2006 Annual Report. These interim financial statements have been
prepared using the same accounting policies as used in the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2006, except as described below.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA™) recommendations pertaining to financial instruments, which establish standards for the recognition,
measurement, disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives.
These recommendations require that fair value be used to measure financial assets that are held for trading or
available for sale, financial liabilities that are held for trading and all derivative financial instruments, Other
financial assets, such as leans and receivables and investments that are held to maturity, and other financial
liabilities are measured at their carrying value. This change in accounting had the following effect on the

consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007:

{a) Recognition of interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and certain natural gas purchase contracts
as derivative assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements (see Note 10).

{b) Recognition of the fair value of a power generation revenue contract liability associated with the natural gas
purchase contracts derivative asset (see Note 10).

(c)} Recognition of a mark-to-market adjustment for the change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts
derivative asset and recognition of an adjustment to the associated power generation revenue contract liability
(see Note 6).

{d) Restatement of opening retained earnings at January 1, 2007 to recognize the prior years' eamings effect of the
natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset and the associated power generation revenue contract liability, as
well as the prior years’ eamings effect of accounting for certain financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost using the effective interest method (see Note 5).

{e) Reclassification of deferred financing charges from other assets to long term debt and non-recourse long term
debt (see Note 7).

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations pentaining to hedges,
which establish standards for the identification, designation, documentation and effectiveness of hedging
relationships for the purpose of applying hedge accounting. The purpose of hedge accounting is to ensure that gains,
losses, revenues and expenses from effective hedging relationships are recorded in earnings in the same period. This
change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2007.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
reporting and disclosure of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income consists of changes in the equity of the
Corporation from sources other than the Corporation’s share owners, and includes earnings of the Corporation, the
foreign currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining foreign operations and unrealized gains and losses
on changes in fair values of available-for-sale assets and effective cash flow hedging instruments. Other
comprehensive income comprises revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are recognized in comprehensive income
but are excluded from eamings of the period. Comprehensive income is disclosed in a separate statement in the
consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
presentation of equity and changes in equity. These recommendations require separate presentation of the
components of equity, including retained earnings, accumulated other comprehensive income, contributed surplus,
share capital and reserves, and the changes therein. As a result of this change in accounting, the Corporation has
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

included a reconciliation of accumulated other comprehensive income in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 11). In accordance with the recommendations, comparative figures have been adjusted to
incorporate the foreign currency translation adjustment into accurmulated other comprehensive income.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation adopted the CICA recommendations that prescribe the criteria for
changing accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment and disclosure of changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and corrections of errors. Adoption of these recommendations had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, except for the
disclosure of accounting changes that have been issued by the CICA but have not yet been adopted by the
Corporation because they are not effective until a future date (see Future Accounting Changes below).

Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta, the timing and
demand of natural gas storage capacity sold, changes in natural gas storage fees and the timing of rate decisions, the
consolidated statements of eamings and retained earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual basis.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
Cash and Short Term [nvestments

Short term investments consist of certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances with maturities generally of 90
days or less at purchase.

Deferred Financing Charges

Issue costs of long term debt are amortized over the life of the debt using the effective interest method. Issue costs
of preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the expected life of the issue and issue costs
of preferred shares relating to other subsidiaries are charged to retained eamnings. Unamortized premiums and issue
costs of redeemed long term debt and preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the life of
the issue funding the redemption. The Corporation’s deferred financing charges pertaining o long term debt have
been reclassified from other assets to long term debt and non-recourse tong term debt in accordance with the CICA
recommendations for financial instruments (see Note 7).

Derivative Financial Instruments

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All
such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

CICA recommendations require the recognition and measurement of derivative instruments embedded in host
contracts that were issued, acquired or substantively modified on or after January i, 2003. Derivative instruments
embedded in host contracts that were issued, acquired or substantively modified prior to January 1, 2003 have not
been identified and recognized in the consclidated financial statements as permitted by the recommendations.

The Corporation designates each derivative instrument as either a hedging instrument or a non-hedge derivative:

{a)} A hedging instrument is designated as either:

(i} a fair value hedge of a recognized asset or liability or,
(i1} a cash flow hedge of either:

» aspecific firm commitment or anticipated transaction or,

» the vanable future cash flows arising from a recognized asset or liability.
At inception of a hedge, the Corporation documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, including the method of assessing retrospective and prospective hedge effectiveness. At the end
of each period, the Corporation assesses whether the hedging instrument has been highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item and measures the amount of any hedge ineffectiveness.
The Corporation also assesses whether the hedging instrument is expected to be highly effective in the future.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

A hedging instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Payments or receipts on a
hedging instrument that is determined to be highly effective as a hedge are recognized concurrently with, and in
the same financial category as, the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the fair value of a fair value hedge are
recognized in earnings concurrently with the hedged item. For a cash flow hedge, the cffective portion of
changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income and is subsequently transferred to earnings
concurrently with the hedged item, whereas the portion of the changes in fair value that is not effective at
offsetting the hedged exposure is recognized in earnings.

If a hedging instrument ceases to be highly effective as a hedge, is de-designated as a hedging instrument or is
settled prior to maturity, then the Corporation ceases hedge accounting prospectively for that instrument; for a
cash flow hedge, the gain or loss deferred to that date remains in accumulated other comprehensive income and
is transferred to earnings concurrently with the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the fair value of that
derivative instrument are recognized in earnings.

If the hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures prior 1o the termination of the related hedging instrument, or
if it is probable that an anticipated transaction will not occur in the originally specifted time frame, then the gain
or loss deferred to that date for the related hedging instrument is immediately transferred from accumulated
other comprehensive income to eamings.

Hedge gains or losses that were recognized in other comprehensive income are added to the initial camrying

amount of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability when:

(i) an anticipated transaction for a non-financial asset or non-financial liability becomes a specific firm
commitment for which fair value hedge accounting is applied or,

(ii) a cash flow hedge of an anticipated transaction subsequently results in the recognition of the non-financial
asset or non-financial liability.

(b) A non-hedge derivative instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value and subsequent
changes in fair value are recorded in earnings.

The Corporation applies settlement date accounting to the purchases and sales of financial assets. Settlement date
accounting implies the recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the Corporation and the recognition of the
disposal of an asset on the day that it is delivered by the Corporation. Any gain or loss on disposal is also
recognized on that day.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable te the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities that
are not held for trading are added to the fair value of such assets or liabilities at time of initial recognition.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of self-sustaining foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange
during the year. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income in share owners’ equity.

Monetary assets and liabilities of integrated foreign operations, as well as non-monetary assets carried at market
value, are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Other non-
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were
acquired or liabilities incurred. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange for
the year; depreciation and amortization are translated at rates of exchange consistent with the assets to which they
relate. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign operations are recognized in earnings.

Transactions undertaken by Canadian operations that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the transaction date. Monetary items and non-monetary items
that are carried at market value arising from a transaction denominated in a foreign currency are adjusted to reflect
the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses on translation of such monetary and non-
monetary items are recognized in earnings.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Future Accounting Changes

The CICA has issued new accounting recommendations for capital disclosures which require disclosure of both
qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the Corporation’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation
beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for disclosure and presentation of finangial instruments
which require disclosures of both qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the Corporation is exposed.
These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for measurement and disclosure of inventories which
provide guidance on the determination of cost and its subsequent recognition as an expense, including any
writedown to net realizable value, and on the cost formulas that are used to assign costs to inventories. The
Corporation is unable to determine at this time the effect of adopting these recommendations on earnings or assets of
the Corporation. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.

2. Rcgulatory matters

On March 17, 2006, ATCO Electric received a decision on its General Tariff Application for 2005 and 2006 which
was filed with the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“AEUB™} in May 2005. The decision established the amount
of revenue ATCO Electric can recover through its rates for electric distribution and transmission service provided to
its customers for 2005 and 2006. The impact of the decision for 2005 reduced ATCO Electric’s earnings by
$1.3 million and was recorded in the first quarter of 2006. The impact of the decision for the full year 2006, as
compared to the decision for the full year 2005, further reduced ATCO Electric’s eamings by $1.6 million. The
decision also confirmed the return on common equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return
methodology. The rate of return on common equity was 8.93% in 2006.

On January 27, 2006, ATCO Gas received a decision on its general rate application which was filed with the AEUB
in May 2005 for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years, The decision established the amount of revenue ATCO Gas
can recover through distribution rates for natural gas distribution service to its customers over the period of 2005 to
2007. The decision also approved the return on common equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of
return methodology. The rate of return on common equity was 8.93% in 2006 and is 8.51% for 2007. The final
impact of the decision is subject to the outcome of an existing process regarding the pricing of services provided by
ATCO I-Tek.

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for
which decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.

3. TXU Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe™} which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking
Power, has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of contract related to
TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating plant. Following
negotiations with the administrators, an agreement was reached with respect to Barking Power’s claim.




3. TXU Europe settlement (continued)

In settlement of its claim, Barking Power received distributions of £144.5 million (approximately $327 million) in
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $83.1 million, and distributions of £34.8 million {(approximately
$71 million) in 2006, of which the Corporation’s share was $18.2 million. Income taxes of approximately
$28.5 million relating to the distributions have been paid.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
earnings will be dependent upon foreign currency ¢xchange rates in effect at the time that the camings are
recognized.

On May 31, 2007, £95.0 million of the TXU proceeds, of which the Corporation’s share is $52.7 million, were
applied to Barking Power’s non-recourse long term debt.

4. Income taxes

On June 15, 2007, an amendment to tax legislation pertaining to the taxation of preferred share dividends paid by
corporations received third reading in the House of Commons. The Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™) has been
assessing corporate tax returns based on this proposed change since January 1, 2003, resulting in a reduction of taxes
paid to the CRA. As this change is now considered to have been substantively enacted, the Corporation recorded a
reduction to current income tax expense of $16.4 million in the second quarter of 2007. Funds generated by
operations increased by $16.4 million, offset by a similar reduction in changes in non-cash working capital, leaving
the Corporation’s cash position unchanged.

In the third quarter of 2006, the CRA issued a reassessment for Alberta Power (2000)’s 2001 taxation year. The
CRA’s reassessment treats the proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner generating plant to the Alberta
Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation has made submissions to the CRA
opposing the CRA’s position. The full impact of the reassessment was a $12.4 million increase in interest and
income tax expense, 2 $12.4 million decrease in eamings (38.0 million recorded in the second quarter of 2006 and
$4.4 million recorded in the third quarter of 2006), and a $28.8 million payment associated with the tax and interest
assessed, paid in the third quarter of 2006. It is expected that $16.4 million of this cash payment will be recovered
by reducing income taxes payable through higher capital cost allowance claims in future years.

5. Retained earnings at beginning of period as restated

January |
2007 2006
Retained earnings at beginning of period as previously reported $1,804.4 $1,7219
Adjustments to retained earnings to recognize the prior years” effect of:
(a) the fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset (net of
income taxes) 41.6 -
(b} the fair value of the power generation revenue contract liability associated with
the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset {net of income taxes) (31.6) -
{(c) the change in methed of accounting for long term debt and non-recourse long
term debt at amortized cost using the effective interest method (net of income
taxes) (0.6) -
(d) the fair value of receivables (net of income taxes) (0.5) -
Retained earnings at beginning of period as restated $1,813.3 $1,721.9
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6. Interest and other income

Interest and other income for the three months ended June 30, 2007 includes a loss of $12.8 million related to the
change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset (see Note 10). This loss is partially offset
by a reduction of $9.9 million to the provision for the associated power generation revenue contract liability.

Interest and other income for the six months ended June 30, 2007 includes a gain of $10.1 million related to the
change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset {(see Note 10). This increase is partially
offset by an additional provision of $6.6 million for the associated power generation revenue contract liability,

7. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt

The CICA recommendations regarding the measurement of financial liabilities require the financial liabilities to be
measured at initial recognition, including transaction costs, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment. Accordingly, deferred financing charges have been
recalculated using the effective interest method. Commencing January 1, 2007, in accordance with CICA
recommendations regarding the presentation of financial liabilities, long term debt and non-recourse long term debt
have been reduced by their respective cumulative unamortized balance of deferred financing charges.

Long term debt

Effective June 30
Interest Rate 2007 2006
CU Inc. debentures — unsecured
2001 4.84% due November 2006 4.977% $ - $ 175.0
2002 4.801% due November 2007 4913% 50.0 50.0
2000 6.97% due June 2008 7.062% 100.0 100.0
1989 Series 10.20% due November 2009 10.331% 125.0 1250
1990 Series 11.40% due August 2010 11.537% 125.0 125.0
2000 7.05% due June 2011 7.130% 100.0 100.0
2004 5.096% due November 2014 5.162% 100.0 100.0
2002 6.145% due November 2017 6.217% 150.0 150.0
2004 5.432% due January 2019 5.492% 180.0 180.0
1999 6.8% due August 2019 6.861% 300.0 300.0
1990 Second Series 11.77% due November 2020 11.903% 100.0 100.0
2006 4.801% due November 2021 4.854% 160.0 -
1991 Series 9.92% due April 2022 10.063% 125.0 125.0
1992 Series 9.40% due May 2023 9.511% 100.0 100.0
2004 5.896% due November 2034 5.939% 200.0 200.0
2005 5.183% due November 2035 5.226% 185.0 185.0
2006 5.032% due November 2036 5.072% 160.0 -
CU Inc. other long term cbligation, due June 2009,
unsecured 6.000% 4.5 4.5
Canadian Utilities Limited debentures — unsecured
2002 6.14% due November 2012 6.228% 100.0 100.0
Less: Deferred financing charges (12.2) -
2,352.3 2,219.5
ATCO Midstream Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates,
due June 2011, unsecured " Floating 25.0 25.0
ATCO Power Canada Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates,
due August 2011, secured by a pledge of cash " Floating 22.0 22.0
$2,399.3 $2,266.5
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7. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Non-recourse long term debt

The CICA recommendations pertaining to financial instruments do not permit the presentation of interest rate swaps
in combination with floating rate long term debt to emulate fixed rate long term debt. Consequently, any of the
Corporation’s floating rate non-recourse long term debt that had previously been presented in combination with
interest rate swaps is now presented exclusive of the effect of the interest rate swaps (see Note 10). The comparative
figures have been restated; this change in presentation had no effect on the amount of the Corporation’s non-

recourse long term debt.

Effective June 30
Project Financing Interest Rate 2007 2006
Barking Power Limited, payable in British pounds:
Term loans, at fixed rates averaging 7.95%, due to 2010
{£20.5 million (2006 — £25.1 million)) 7.95% § 436 $ 518
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2010 ¥
(£9.2 million (2006 — £41.2 million)) Floating 19.9 84.9
Osbome Cogeneration Pty Ltd., payable in Australian dollars:
Term loan, at Bank Bill rates, due to 2013 ("
($35.1 million AUD (2006 — $39.4 million AUDY) Floating ? 31.6 127
ATCO Power Alberta Limited Partnership (“APALP™):
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2016 Floating @ 86.5 93.4
Joffre:
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2012 ¥ Floating @ 0.5 8.3
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2012 ! Floating @ 0.9 14.7
Notes, at fixed rate of 8.59%, due to 2020 8.845% 320 320
Scotford:
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2014 Floating @ 42.5 438
Term facility, at Canadian Prime Advances, due to 2014 V Floating @ 0.2 0.2
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2014 Floating @ 10.7 .0
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.93%, due to 2022 8.302% 25.7 26.5
Muskeg River;
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2014 Floating ¥ 325 34.1
Term facility, at Canadian Prime Advances, due to 2014 " Floating ¥ 0.1 0.2
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2014 Floating @ 8.2 8.6
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.56%, due to 2022 7.902% 28.5 30.3
Brighton Beach:
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2020 Floating @ 19.7 20.6
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2020 " Floating ¥ 17.7 18.5
Construction overrun facility, at BA rates, due to 2020 ¥ Floating 4.8 5.0
Construction overrun facility, at LIBOR, due to 2020 ¥ Floating @ 4.4 4.6
Notes, at fixed rate of 6.924%, due to 2024 7.025% 106.4 109.2
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7. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Non-recourse long term debt {continued)

Effective June 30
Project Financing Interest Rate 2007 2006
Cory:

Cost overrun facility, at BA rates, due to 2011 'V Floating 2.7 3.3
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.586%, due to 2025 7.872% 36.0 36.9
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.601%, due to 2026 7.880% 32.0 32.8
Less: Deferred financing charges (1.7 -
579.4 703.4
Less: Amounts due within one year 68.9 53.3
$510.5 $650.1

BA — Bankers' Acceptance
LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate

@) The above interest rates have additional margin fees at a weighted average rate of 1.1% (2006 — 1.1%). The
margin fees are subject to escalation.

?  Floating interest rates have been partially or completely hedged with interest rate swaps (see Note 10).

8. Equity preferred shares

CU Inc. equity preferred shares

Authorized and issued

Authorized: An unlimited number of Series Preferred Shares, issuable in series.

Issued:
June 30
Stated Redemption 2007 2006
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
{dollars)
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares
4.60% Series | $25.00 See below 4,600,000 $115.0 - $ -

On April 18, 2007, CU Inc., a subsidiary corporation, issued $115.0 million Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares Series 1 at a price of $25.00 per share for cash. The dividend rate has been fixed at 4.60%. The net proceeds
of the issue were used in part to redeem $91.8 million of the outstanding Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred
Shares Series Q, R and S of ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines, subsidiary corporations of CU Inc.,
that are held by Canadian Utilities Limited.

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues are
$106.3 million (2006 - nil).

Redemption privileges
The Series 1 preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Corporation commencing on June 1, 2012, at the

stated value plus a 4% premium per share for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends, The
redemption premium declines by t% in each succeeding twelve month period until June 1, 2016.
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8. Equity preferred shares {continued)
Canadian Utilities Limited equity preferred shares
Authorized and issued

Authorized: An unlimited number of Series Second Preferred Shares, issuable in series.

Issued:
June 30
Stated Redemption 2007 2006
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
(dollars)
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares
5.9% Series Q $25.00 Open - $ - 2,277,675 $ 569
5.3% Series R $25.00 Open - - 2,146,730 53.7
6.6% Series § $25.00 Open - - 635,700 15.9
5.8% Series W $25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0 6,000,000 150.0
6.0% Series X $25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0 6,000,000 150.0
Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares
4.35% Sernies O $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0 1,600,000 40.0
4.35% Series T $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0 1,600,000 40.0
4.35% Series U $25.00 December 2, 2011 800,000 20.0 800,000 20.0
5.25% Series ¥ $25.00 October 3, 2007 4,400,000 110.0 4,400,000 110.0
$510.0 $636.5

On May 18, 2007, Canadian Utilities Limited redeemed $126.5 million of outstanding Cumulative Redeemable
Second Preferred Shares Series QQ, R and S at a price of $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends per
share.

The dividends payable on the Series O, T, U and V preferred shares are fixed until the redemption dates specified
above, at which time a new dividend rate may be established by negotiations between Canadian Utilities Limited
and the owners of the shares.

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues are
$516.9 million (2006 - $662.6 million).

Redemption privileges

The preferred shares, except for Series W and X, are redeemable on the dates specified above at the option of
Canadian Utilities Limited at the stated value plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

The Series W preferred shares are redeemable commencing on March 1, 2008 at the stated value plus a 4% premium
for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in each
succeeding 12 month period until March 1, 2012,

The Series X preferred shares are redeemable commencing June 1, 2008 at the stated value plus a 4% premium for

the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in each
succeeding 12 month period until June 1, 2012.
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9, Class A and Class B shares

There were 81,601,024 (2006 — 82,245,786) Class A non-voting shares and 43,831,846 (2006 — 44,009,284) Class B
common shares outstanding on June 30, 2007. In addition, there were 1,323,800 options to purchase Class A non-
voting shares outstanding at June 30, 2007 under the Corporation’s stock option plan. From July 1, 2007, to July 24,
2007, no stock options were granted or cancelled, 800 stock options were exercised, 5,500 Class B common shares
were converted to Class A non-voting shares and no Class A non-voling shares were purchased under the
Corporation’s normal course issuer bid.

The average number of shares used to calculate earmnings per share are as follows:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted average shares outstanding 125,421,108 126,769,671 125,405,855 126,859,037
Effect of dilutive stock options 533,297 542 911 511,738 564,411
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 125,954,405 127,312,582 125,917,593 127 423,448

10. Risk management and financial instruments

The Corporation is exposed to changes in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The
Power Generation segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the price of electricity in the Province of
Alberta and the United Kingdom and the Global Enterprises segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the
price of natural gas liquids. ln conducting its business, the Corporation may use varicus instruments, including
forward contracts, swaps and options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates
and commodity prices. All such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purpeses.

At June 30, 2007, the following derivative instruments were outstanding: interest rate swaps that hedge interest rate
risk on the variable future cash flows associated with a portion of non-recourse long term debt, foreign currency
forward contracts that hedge foreign currency risk on the future cash flows associated with specific firm
commitments or anticipated transactions and certain natural gas purchase contracts.

The derivative assets and liabilities comprise the following:

June 30
2007

Derivative assets — current:
Interest rate swap agreements $ 0.5
Derivative assets — non-current.
Natural gas purchase contracts $69.1
Interest rate swap agreements 0.6

$65.7
Derivative liabilities — current:
Interest rate swap agreements $§1.0
Derivative liabilities — non-current:
Interest rate swap agreements $18
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10. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Corporation has converted variable rate non-recourse long term debt to fixed rate debt through the following
interest rate swap agreements:

Swap Fixed Notional Principal
Project Interest Variable Debt Maturity June 30
Financing Rate " Interest Rate Date 2007 2006
Osborne:
($33.3 million AUD {2006 — Bank Bill Rate
$37.4 million AUD)) 7.3325% in Australia December 2013 $ 30.1 3310
APALP: 7.54% 90 day BA November 2008 1.9 32
7.317% 90 day BA December 2008 2.7 4.5
7.50% 6 month LIBOR  December 2011 79.0 85.7
Joffre: 7.286% 90 day BA September 2012 21.9 26.1
Scotford: 5212% 90 day BA September 2008 51.6 56.7
Muskeg River: 5.287% 90 day BA December 2007 39.9 427
Brighton Beach: 5.8367% 90 day BA June 2009 8.7 9.2
6.575% 90 day BA March 2019 352 37.0
Cory: 6.346% 90 day BA June 2011 2.4 3.0
$273.4 $299.1

BA — Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate

D The above swap fixed interest rates include any long term debt margin fees; the margin fees are subject to

escalation (Note 7).

The Corporation has fixed interest rates, either directly or through interest rate swap agreements, on 98% (2006 —
96%) of total long term debt and non-recourse long term debt.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The Corporation has exposure to changes in the carrying values of its foreign operations, including assets and
liabilities, as a result of changes in exchange rates. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign
operations are included in the foreign currency translation adjustment account in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign operations are recognized in earnings.

The Corporation has entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to fix the exchange rate on certain
planned equipment expenditures and operational cash flows denominated in U.S. dollars and Euros. At June 30,
2007, the centracts consist of purchases of $13.6 million U.S. (2006 — purchases of $2.3 million U.S. and sales of
1.7 million Euros).

Natural gas purchase contracts and associated power generation revenue contract liability

The Corporation has long term contracts for the supply of natural gas for certain of its power generation projects.
Under the terms of certain of these contracts, the volume of natural gas that the Corporation is entitled to take is in
excess of the natural gas required to generate power. As the excess volume of natural gas can be sold, the
Corporation is required to designate these entire contracts as derivative instruments. The Corporation recognized a
non-current derivative asset of $59.0 million on January 1, 2007; thereafter, the Corporation will record mark-to-
market adjustments through earnings as the fair values of these contracts change with changes in future natural gas
prices. These natural gas purchase contracts mature in November 2014,




10. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

As all but the excess volume of natural gas is committed to the Corporation’s power generation obligations, the
Corporation could not recognize the entire fair values of these natural gas purchase contracts in its revenues.
Consequently, on January 1, 2007, the Corporation recognized a provision for a power generation revenue contract
in the amount of $44.8 million; thereafter, the Corporation will record adjustments to the power generation revenue
contract liability concurrently with the mark-to-market adjustments for the natural gas purchase contracts derivative
asset. This power generation revenue contract liability is included in deferred credits in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The mark-to-market adjustment for the derivative asset and the corresponding adjustment for the associated power
generation revenue contract liability decreased eamings by $2.0 million, net of income taxes, for the three months
ended June 30, 2007 and increased eamings by $2.5 millien, net of income taxes, for the six months ended June 30,
2007.

Credit risk

For cash and short term investments and accounts receivable, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the
consolidated balance sheet. Accounts receivable credit risk is reduced by a large and diversified customer base,
requirement of letters of credit, and, for regulated operations other than Alberta Power (2000), the ability to recover
an estimate for doubtful accounts through approved customer rates.

Derivative credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty to a contract fails to perform according to the
terms and conditions of that contract. Derivative credit risk is minimized by dealing with large, credit-worthy
counterparties in accordance with established credit approval policies.

Fair value of non-derivative financial instruments

The carrying values and fair values of the Corporation’s non-derivative financial instruments are as follows:

June 30
2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

Assets

Cash and short term investments $ 813.0 $ 813.0 $ 904.0 $ 904.0
Accounts receivable (! 292.8 292.8 251.1 251.1
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabitities 317.0 317.0 276.0 276.0
Long term debt 2,399.3 2,661.2 2,266.5 2,553.5
Non-recourse long term debt @ 579.4 608.7 703.4 731.2

) Recorded at cost. Fair value approximates the carrying amounts due lo the short term nature of the financial

instruments and negligible credit losses.

Recorded at cost. Fair value approximates the carrying amounts due to the short term nature of the financial
instruments.

Recorded at amortized cost. Fair values are determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar
issues. Where the market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis based on the Corporation’s current borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.

f2)

3)
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10.

Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of the Corporation’s derivative financial instruments are as follows:

June 30
2007 2006
Fair Value Fair Value
Notional Receivable Notional Receivable

Principal " (Payable)®  Maturity  Principal ”  (Payable)”  Maturity

Interest rate swaps $273.4 $(1.7) 2007-2019 $299.1 $(3.4) 2007-2019
Foreign currency

forward contracts $ 14.6 5 - 2007-2008 $ 5.1 g - 2006
Natural gas purchase

contracts N/A® $69.1 2014 N/A N/A N/A®

(n

(2)

3)

4)

11.

The notional principal is not recorded in the consolidated financial statements as it does not represent amounts
that are exchanged by the counterparties.

The notional amount for the natural gas purchase contracts is the maximum volumes that can be purchased
over the terms of the contracts.

Fair values for the interest rate swaps and the foreign currency forward coniracts have been estimated using
period-end market rates, and fair values for the narural gas purchase contracts have been estimated using
period-end forward market prices for natural gas. These fair values approximate the amoun! that ihe
Corporation would either pay or receive to settle the contract at June 30.

In accordance with the CICA recommendations for financial instruments, disclosures not required in financial
statements for periods prior to January 1, 2007 need not be provided on a comparative basis.

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income (“*QCI”) of the Corporation is comprised of three components: the unrealized gains
and losses on effective cash flow hedging instruments, the unrealized gains and losses on financial assets that are
available for sale, and the foreign currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining foreign operations.




11. Other comprehensive income (continued)

Changes in the components of accumulated OC! are summarized below:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
2007 2006 2007 2006
Accumulated OCI at beginning of period:
Cash flow hedge losses ¥ $ (6.9) s - § - $ -
Financial assets available for sale 0.1 - - -
Foreign currency translation adjustment 34 (18.2) 3.1 {18.2)
34 (18.2) 3.1 {18.2)
Adjustment to accumulated OCI at beginning of period
due to change in method o{f accounting for:
Cash flow hedge losses - - (7.4) -
Financial assets available for sale - - 0.1 -
- - (7.3) -
OCl for the period:
Changes in fair values of cash flow hedges ¥ 31 - 35 -
Transfers of cash flow hedge losses to earnings 2 - - 0.1 -
31 - 36 -
Foreign currency translation adjustment (13.7) 1.5 {13.4) 1.5
(10.6) 1.5 (9.8) 1.5
Accumulated OCT at end (%f period:
Cash flow hedge losses 3 {3.8) - 3.8) -
Financial assets available for sale 0.1 - 0.1 -
Foreign currency translation adjustment (10.3) {16.7) (10.3) (16.7)
$(14.0) 3(16.7) $(14.0) $(16.7)

1)
2)
(3}
)
5)

Net of income taxes of $3.1 million.

Net of income taxes of nil.

Net of income taxes of $3.2 miilion.

Net of income taxes of 3(1.5) million and 3(1.6} million, respectively.
Net of income taxes of 81.6 million and 81.6 million, respectively.

12, Employee future benefits

In the three months ended June 30, 2007, net expense of $3.7 million (2006 — $3.8 million) was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expense of $1.4 million (2006 — $1.3 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

In the six months ended June 30, 2007, net expense of $7.3 million (2006 — $7.7 million) was recognized for

pension benefit plans and net expense of $2.7 million (2006 — $2.5 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.
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13. Segmented information

Segmented results — Three months ended June 30

2007 Power Global Corporate Intersegment

2006 Utilities Generation Enterprises and Other Eliminations Consolidated

(Unaudited)

Revenues — external $ 2646 $ 175.6 $119.7 $ 04 A - $ 5603
$ 240.1 $ 1805 $142.5 £ 03 h) - § 563.4

Revenues — intersegment ! 6.1 - 284 3.0 37.5) -

6.2 - 30.7 2.8 (39.7) -

Revenues § 2707 $ 1756 $148.1 $ 34 $(37.5) $ 5603
$ 2463 $ 1805 §173.2 5 3.1 5(39.7) $ 563.4

Earnings attributable to § 283 § 272 5 186 $ 78 £ (0.8) $ 811

Class A and Class B shares $ 179 $ 256 $ 28.6 3 (0.4) $ (1.5) § 702

Segmented results — Six months ended June 30

2007 Power Global Corporate Intersegment

2006 Utilities Generation Enterpriscs and Other Eliminations Consolidated

{Unaudited)

Revenues — external $ 603.0 $ 3815 $272.6 $ 08 3 - §1,257.9
$ 5628 § 3703 $271.7 § 06 $ - $1,205.4

Revenues — intersegment n 124 - 574 5.9 (75.7) -

12.2 - 55.6 5.5 (73.3) -

Revenues $ 6154 $ 3815 $330.0 $ 67 $(75.7) $1,257.9
5 5750 $ 3703 $327.3 5 6.1 5(73.3) 31,2054

Eamings attributabic 1o 5 774 $ 706 $ 61.4 $ 8.0 $ (Lo6) § 2158

Class A and Class B shares $ 583 § 530 $ 51.6 § 29 g 29 § 1571

Total assets $3,842.7 $2,224.4 $237.8 $613.0 $113.6 $7,031.5
$3,566.5 $2,197.3 $287.9 $702.9 $ 483 $6,802.9

1)

Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A™)

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Canadian Utilities Limited
(the “Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2007, and the audited consolidated financial statements and
management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December
31, 2006 (“2006 MD&A”). Information contained in the 2006 MD&A that is not discussed in this document
remains substantially unchanged. Additional information relating to the Corporation, including the Corporation’s
Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www sedar.com.

The equity securities of the Corporation consist of Class A non-voting shares (“Class A shares”) and Class B
common shares (“Class B shares™).
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate™, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks,

uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
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such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such
forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to contractual obligations, planned capital
expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation and non-regulated generating capacity subject to long
term contracts. The Corporation’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
locking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive factors in the industries in which the Corporation
operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the
Corporation.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In this MD&A, reference is made to funds generated by operations, which is a measure that does not have a
standardized meaning under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™). Funds generated by
operations is calculated on the Corporation’s consolidated statement of cash flows from operating activities before
changes in non-cash working capital. In the Corporation’s opinion, funds generated by operations is a significant
performance indicator of the Corporation’s ability to gencrate cash flow to fund its capital expenditures.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in the Corporatien’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three
months ended June 30, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, corporate transactions are accounted for as
Corporate and Other (refer to Note 13 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended June 30, 2007). Transactions between Business Groups are eliminated in all reperting of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial information.

NATURAL GAS PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND ASSOCIATED POWER GENERATION REVENUE
CONTRACT LIABILITY

The Corporation has long term contracts for the supply of natural gas for certain of its power generation projects.
Under the terms of certain of these contracts, the volume of natural gas that the Corporation is entitled to take is in
excess of the natural gas required to generate power. As the excess volume of natural gas can be sold, the
Corporation is required to designate these entire contracts as derivative instruments. The Corporation recognized a
non-current derivative asset of $59.0 million on January 1, 2007; thereafter, the Corporation will record mark-to-
market adjustments through eamings as the fair vatues of these contracts change with changes in future natural gas
prices. These natural gas purchase contracts mature in November 2014.

As all but the excess volume of natural gas is committed to the Corporation’s power generation obligations, the
Corporation could not recognize the entire fair values of these natural gas purchase contracts in ils revenues.
Consequently, on January 1, 2007, the Corporation recognized a provision for a power generation revenue contract
in the amount of $44.8 million; thereafter, the Corporation will record adjustments to the power generation revenue
contract liability concurrently with the mark-to-market adjustments for the natural gas purchase contracts derivative
asset. This power generation revenue contract liability is included in deferred credits in the consolidated balance
sheet. -




The mark-to-market adjustment for the derivative asset and the corresponding adjustment for the associated power
generation revenue contract Hability decreased earnings by $2.0 million, net of income taxes, for the three months
ended June 30, 2007, and increased earnings by $2.5 million, net of income taxes, for the six months ended June 30,
2007 (“Mark-to-Market Adjustment™).

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe™) which had a long term “off take™ agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited (“Barking Power’), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement was reached with respect to Barking Power’s
claim.

In settlement of its claim, Barking Power received distributions of £144.5 million (approximately $327 million) in
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $83.1 million, and distributions of £34.8 million (approximately $71
million} in 2006, of which the Corporation’s share was $18.2 million. Income taxes of approximately $28.5 million
relating to the distributions have been paid.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect on March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
garnings will be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time that the eamings are
recognized.

On May 31, 2007, £95.0 million of the TXU proceeds (of which the Corporation’s share is $52.7 million), were
applied to Barking Power’s non-recourse long term debt.

H.R. MILNER INCOME TAX REASSESSMENT

In the third quarter of 2006, the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™} issued a reassessment for Alberta Power
(2000)’s 2001 taxation year, The CRA’s reassessment treats the proceeds recetved from the sale of the H R, Milner
generating plant to the Alberta Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation has
made submissions to the CRA opposing the CRA’s position. The full impact of the reassessment was a $12.4
million increase in interest and income tax expense, a $12.4 million decrease in earnings ($8.0 million recorded in
the second quarter of 2006 and $4.4 million recorded in the third quarter of 2006), and a $28.8 million payment
associated with the tax and interest assessed, paid in the third quarter of 2006. It is expected that $16.4 million of
this cash payment will be recovered by reducing income taxes payable through higher capital cost allowance claims
in future years.

2007 CHANGE IN THE TAXATION OF PREFERRED SHARE DIVIDENDS

On June 15, 2007, an amendment to tax legislation pertaining to the taxation of preferred share dividends paid by
corporations received third reading in the House of Commons. This change pertains to taxes paid by corporations
that pay dividends on taxable preferred shares (Part V1.1 tax). Prior to this change, corporations that paid Part V1.1
tax were entitled to an income tax deduction equal to 9/4ths of the Part V1.1 tax paid. This deduction was increased
to 9/3rds of the Part V1.1 tax paid effective January 1, 2003. The CRA has been assessing corporate tax returns
based on this proposed change since January 1, 2003, resulting in a reduction of taxes paid to the CRA. As this
change is now considered to have been substantively enacted, the Corporation recorded a reduction to current
income tax expense of $£6.4 million in the second quarter of 2007. Funds generated by operations increased by
$16.4 million, offset by a similar reduction in changes in non-cash working capital, leaving the Corporation’s cash
position unchanged (“Part V1.1 Tax Adjustment™).




The earnings impact of the Part V1.1 Tax Adjustment by Business Group is as follows:

Years Prior First Quarter

to 2007 of 2007 Total
($ Millions)
UBIIEIES v vee e e eenire e et e e s s s e s 42 0.2 4.4
Power GENeTation .......ccceeirinierinniiorirenierisnsissisresconsesiesmsnsreees 1.3 0.1 14
Global ENtErPriSes ..o.ceoeee e esies 1.4 - 1.4
Corporate and Other ... 8.7 0.5 9.2
TORAL ... ceoeceeeceeeeeee et bt e st 15.6 0.8 16.4

2006 CHANGES IN INCOME TAXES AND RATES

In 2006, Federal and provincial governments announced a number of changes to income taxes and rates. As a result
of these changes the Corporation made an adjustment to income taxes amounting to $11.8 million in the second
quarter of 2006, most of which related to future income taxes. The adjustment increased 2006 earnings by 511.8
million, of which $1.9 million related to the Utilities Business Group, $7.2 million to the Power Generation
Business Group, $2.3 million to the Global Enterprises Business Group and $0.4 million to Corporate and Other.

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

($ Millions except per share data) Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31
(unaudirted)
2007 (1) (2)
REVEINUES....coociie it e err e e et s s 697.6 5603 i
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares....................... 134.7 8Ll s
Earnings per Class A and Class B share .........ccoooormncinninienninnns 1.07 065 e
Diluted carnings per Class A and Class B share......cocovvc i 1.07 0.64 e
2006 (1) (2)
REVEIIUES....cvicteiins e ierenivan e ererssecereeasas e essese e seesseem ses e s nns s emnanba s 642.0 563.4 553.9 671.1
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares..........c..c.o00 869 70.2 66.8 100.0
Earnings per Class A and Class B share ... 0.68 0.56 0.53 0.80
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share........c..ccoccoioeienne 0.68 0.55 0.53 0.80
2005 (1) (2)
REVEIILES. ...t et e et sb b s s s srnsene e tarenibanrtins vesrrareeeer 5374 680.3
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares..........cccci. s i, 46.5 89.1
Earnings per Class A and Class B share ...t s e, 0.37 0.70
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share......ccocoiicinins s covvenieeniens 0.37 0.69
Notes:

(1) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(2) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta, the timing
and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold, changes in natural gas storage fees and the timing of rate
decisions, revenues and earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(3) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that have caused variations in revenues and carnings over the eight most recently completed
quarters necessary to understand general trends that have developed and the seasonality of the businesses disclosed
in the 2006 MD&A remain substantially unchanged, except for the impact of the 2007 change in the taxation of
preferred share dividends.

Consolidated Operations

Revenues, earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares, and eamings and diluted eamings per share were as
follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2007 2006
(unaudited)
Revenues (1) {2) i e 560.3 563.4 1,257.9 1,205.4
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (1} (2} .............. 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1
Earnings per Class A share and Class B share (1) (2) ..coovovicieees 0.65 0.56 1.72 1.24
Diluted earnings per Class A share and Class B share (1} (2) .......... 0.64 0.55 1.71 1.23

Notes.

(1)} There were no discontinued operations or extracrdinary items during these periods.

(2} Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation's operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberia, the timing
and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold, changes in natural gas storage fees and the timing of rate
decisions, revenues and earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(3) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $3.1 million to $560.3 million, primarily due to:

* lower natural gas liquids (“NGL”) revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and
resold on a “no-margin” basis, lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction, and
the timing and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold and lower storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks -- Non-Regulated Operations - ATCO Midstream section},

* lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin™ basis in ATCO Power’s United Kingdom
("U.K.”) operations; and

« impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board
(*AEUB’) in the ATCO Gas General Rate Application (“GRA") Decision recorded in the second quarter of
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

This decrease was partially offset by:
« impact of 2007 interimn customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
e colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
¢ higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $52.5 million to $1,257.9 million, primarily due to:

e the timing and demand of natural pas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO Midstream section),

e impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
impact of higher UK. exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power's
U.K. operations.
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This increase was partially offset by:

lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no-margin”
basis and lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction in ATCO Midstream;
lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and
impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision
recorded in the second quarter of 2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased by
$10.9 million ($0.09 per share) to $81.1 million ($0.65 per share), primarily due to:

$16.4 million Part VI.I Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section);

colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and

H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This increase was partially offset by:

$11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section);

the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold, lower storage fees and lower volumes and
margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO
Midstream section);

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters -- ATCO Electric section); and

higher operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation expenses in ATCO Gas due to customner
growth and increased capital expenditures.

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $58.7
miltion ($0.48 per share) to $215.8 miilion ($1.72 per share), primarily due to:

$16.4 million Part VI.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section);

colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas;

the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations - ATCO Midstream sectien); and

H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer te H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This increase was partially offset by:

$11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section);

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);

higher operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation expenses in ATCO Gas due (o customer
growth and increased capital expenditures;

increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Lid. Class I Non-Voting share prices since December 2006; and

lower volumes and margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated
Operations - ATCO Midstream section).

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $8.3 million
to $332.3 million, and by $7.1 million to $690.7 million, respectively, primarily due to:

higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities;

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Gas due to customer growth and increased capital
expenditures.




This increase was partially offset by:
« lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and
s lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no-margin” basis for NGL extraction in
ATCO Midstream.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $8.6
million to $83.3 million, and by $4.4 miltion te $175.2 million, respectively, primarily due to:
« one-time amortization charge of certain deferred items approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA
Decision recorded in the second quarter of 2006.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e capital additions in 2007 and 2006.

Interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $7.0 million to $53.7 million, and
by $5.7 million to $108.3 million, respectively, primarily due to:

s repayment of non-recourse financings in 2007 and 2006; and

¢ H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R, Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ interest on new financings issued in 2006 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations.

Interest and other income for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $1.8 million to $11.4 million,
primarily due to:
s  Mark-to-Market Adjustment (refer to Natural Gas Purchase Contracts and Associated Power Generation
Revenue Contract Liability section).

Interest and other income for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $9.3 million to $31.6 million,
primarily due to:
¢ higher short term interest rates on cash investments; and
e Mark-to-Market Adjustment {refer to Natural Gas Purchase Contracts and Associated Power Generation
Revenue Contract Liability section).

Income taxes for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $8.4 million to $12.4 million, primarily due
to:
o $16.4 million Part VI.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section); and
» H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This decrease was partially offset by:
*  higher camings; and
+ $11.8 millien adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section),

Income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $6.3 million to $81.8 million, primarily due to:
» higher eamings; and
e 511.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes {refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).

This increase was partially offset by:
s $16.4 million Part VI.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section); and
« H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).




Segmented Information

Scgmented revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, were as follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006
(unaudited)
UHTIEIES oo ir e cir e ererr e vt e s s e vrae et s s e e sbeeae s sbesaarsmtr s st ganeeanres 270.7 246.3 0154 575.0
POWET GERETALION 1eivvivieiriinniietevrenrevibitratrseare st besbesss s rastesies e e eteetesenes 175.6 180.5 381.5 3703
Global ENerpriSes ..ot e e 148.1 173.2 3300 3273
Corporate and Other ... e 34 3.1 6.7 6.1
Intersegment elimiNations. ...........ovivieieeee et crcre e e anas (37.5) (39.7) (75.7) (73.3)
TOLAL....c.otieiii ettt rab et eab e b e rab et e st b e e 560.3 563.4 1,257.9 1,205.4

Segmented earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three and six months ended June 30,
2007, were as follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Meonths Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006
(unaudited)
UUHEES e e e s e e 28.3 17.9 77.4 58.3
Power GEneration ..........cccvvrernvienierneeioreesmessonsmesiesrmnsiassssnssesrons 27.2 25.6 70.6 53.0
Global ERIEIPrises .......coiviveinniininean s seesnens s 18.6 28.6 61.4 51.6
Corporate and Other ... et 7.8 (0.4) 8.0 (2.9)
Intersegment eliminations.........oovioiiiiiiie s (0.8) (1.5) {1.6) (2.9)
TOtAL. ettt et bbbt s st 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $24.4 million
to $270.7 million, primarily due to:
¢ impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
e colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
s higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

This increase was partially offset by:
e impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision
recorded in the second quarter of 2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Temperatures in ATCO Gas for the three months ended June 30, 2007, were 5.5% colder than normal, compared to
25.7% warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2006.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $40.4 million to $615.4 million, primarily due to:
+ impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and
»  colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision
recorded in the second quarter of 2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).
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Temperatures in ATCQ Gas for the six months ended June 30, 2007, were 2.9% warmer than normal, compared to
10.7% warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2006,

Earnings for the three and six months ended june 30, 2007, increased by 3$10.4 million to $28.3 million, and by
$19.1 miilion to $77.4 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sates per customer in ATCO Gas; and
o $4.4 million Part V1.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends
section).

This increase was partially offset by:
s higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
¢ higher operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation expenses in ATCO Gas due to customer
growth and increased capital expenditures; and
»  $1.9 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).

Utilities Business Group capital expenditures to maintain capacity and meet planned growth are expected to be
approximately $600 million in 2007. The total three year (2007-2009) anticipated capital expenditures in the
Utilities Business Group are expected to be approximately $2.1 billion,

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generatien Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $4.9
million to $175.6 million, primarily due to:
* lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin™ basis in ATCO Power’s UK. operations.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ increased availability due te timing of cutages in 2006 in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations;
¢ impact of higher UK. exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s
U K operations; and
o higher revenues in ATCO Power’s Australian operations due to higher power prices,

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $11.2 million to $381.5 million, primarily due to:
» impact of higher UK. exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s
UK operations;
o higher revenues in ATCO Power’s Australian operations due to higher power prices; and
e increased availability due to timing of outages in 2006 in ATCO Power’s U K. operations.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin™ basis in ATCO Power’s UK. operations.

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $1.6 million to $27.2 million, and by
$17.6 million to $70.6 million, respectively, primarity due to:
e H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section);
and
» improved merchant performance, increased availability due to the timing of outages in 2006, and higher
exchange rates on conversion of earnings to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.

This increase was partially offset by:

s $7.2 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).
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Impacting Alberta Power (2000)’s revenues and earnings for the three and six menths ended June 30, 2007, were
lower Power Purchase Arrangement (“PPA™} tariffs dve to declining rate bases at the Battle River and Sheerness
generating plants and a decline in the return on common equity rate (2007 — 8.65%, 2006 — 8.75%). These return on
common equity rates are based on long term Government of Canada bond yields plus 4.5%.

Alberta Power Pool Electricity Prices

Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal cost of
producing electricity from natural gas. These spark spreads are based on an approximate industry heat rate of 7.5
gigajoules per megawatt hour.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 406 megawatts of plant capacity owned in Alberta by
ATCO Power and Alberta Power (2000) out of a total Alberta owned capacity of approximately 1,709 megawatts
and a worldwide owned capacity of approximately 2,474 megawatts.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $49.87 per megawatt hour,
compared to average prices of $53.61 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006. Natural gas prices
for the three months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $6.73 per gigajoule, compared to average prices of $5.68 per
gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2006. The consequence of these electricity and natural gas prices was an
average spark spread of $(0.62) per megawatt hour for the three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $10.99
per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006,

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the six months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $56.58 per megawatt hour,
compared to average prices of $55.23 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006. Natural gas prices
for the six months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $6.87 per gigajoule, compared to average prices of $6.41 per
gigajoute for the corresponding period in 2006. The consequence of these electricity and narural gas prices was an
average spark spread of $5.07 per megawatt hour for the six months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $7.17 per
megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006.

Deferred Availability Incentives

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $3.6 million to $42.6 million. The decrease was due to planned outages and the quarterly amortization
of deferred availability incentives. During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the amortization of deferred
availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.4 million to $3.0 million, compared to the same period
in 2006.

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
increased by $3.0 million to $42.6 million. The increase was due to additional availability incentives reccived for
improved plant availability net of quarterly amortization and planned outages. During the six months ended June
30, 2007, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.6 million to $5.9
million, compared to the same period in 2006.

Recent Developments

The Piikani Nation of Brockett, Alberta, exercised their option, on July 1, 2007, 1o purchase a 25% interest in ATCO
Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 32 megawatt hydroelectric generating plant at the Oldman River dam near Pincher
Creek, Alberta.

On May 10, 2007, ATCO Power announced that it will construct a 45 megawatt natural gas-fired unit for its
Valleyview generating plant in Valleyview, Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the unit will be sold to the
Alberta Power Pool. Construction of the unit is scheduled for completion in 2008.

Alberta Power (2000) operated the Rainbow generating plant during 2006 and the electricity generated was sold to
the Alberta Power Pool. Alberta Power (2000) had one year after the expiry of the PPA for the Rainbow generating
plant {December 31, 2005) to determine whether to decommission the plant in order to fully recover plant
decommissioning costs or to continue to operate the plant. In the first quarter of 2007 the Alberta Electric System
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Operator (“AESO”) and Alberta Power (2000) executed a contract resulting in Alberta Power (2000) continuing to
operate the piant and thus be responsible for future decommissioning costs. These costs are included in Alberta
Power (2000)’s asset retirement obligation liability.

Global Enterpriscs

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by
$25.1 million to $148.1 million, primarily due to:

s lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and reseld on a “no-margin”
basis, lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction, and the timing and demand of
natural gas storage capacity sold and lower storage fees in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks —
Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO Midstream section).

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $2.7 million to $330.0 million, primarily due to:
¢ the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks - Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO Midstream section).

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no-margin”
basis and lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction in ATCO Midstream.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $10.0 millicn to $18.6 million, primarily due to:
¢ the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold, lower storage fees and lower volumes and
margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO
Midstream section).

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $9.8 million to $61.4 million, primarily due to:
» the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations - ATCO Midstream section).

This increase was partially offset by:

¢ lower volumes and margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated
Operations — ATCO Midstream section).
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ATCO Midstream

ATCO Midstream provides natural gas producers gathering, processing and liquids extraction services and natural
gas storage.

The difference between natural gas cost and the NGL’s value on a heatl content equivalent basis is commonly
referred to as the frac spread. ATCO Midstream’s frac spreads can vary with fluctuations in the natural gas and
NGL pricing. Frac spreads can be volatile, as shown in the following graph, which illustrates monthly frac spreads
during the period of January 2003 to June 2007.
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The above table represents measurements of frac spreads as reported by an independent consultant and does not
necessarily represent the frac spreads received by ATCO Midstream.

Fluctuations in frac spreads may have a significant impact on ATCO Midstream’s earnings and cash flow from
operations in the future. A $1.00 change in the average annual frac spread may impact annual earnings by as much
as $7 million. Total capacity of ATCO Midstream’s NGL plants is 41 1 miltion cubic feet per day.

The majority of ATCO Midstream’s natural gas storage revenues comes from seasonal differences (summer/winter)
in the price of natural gas. Recognition of ATCO Midstream’s revenues is determined through the terms of the
contractual arrangements.




Summer/winter natural gas storage differential can be very volatile, as shown in the following graph, which
illustrates a range of differentials experienced during the storage perieds from 2003-2004 to 2007-2008,
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ATCO Frontec

In June 2007, the Corporation was awarded five NATO support contracts at the Kandahar Airfield in Afghanistan
for up to five years. Specific sectors of responsibility will include fire and crash rescue, visiting aircrafl cross-
servicing services, roads and grounds maintenance, facility maintenance, construction, engineering, equipment and
vehicle maintenance, aircraft movement control and terminal transport, accommeodation scrvices, supply operations,
airfield mechanical transport, delivery of potable water, sewage management, and waste management and disposal.

[n June 2007, UQSUQ Corperation, a joint venture between ATCO Frontec and Nunavut Petroleum, was awarded a
five year contract renewal to lease and operate the 79 million litre bulk fuel storage facility, the pipeline distribution
system and the municipal fuel distribution system in Iqaluit, Nunawvut.

Corporate and Other

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $8.2 million to $7.8 million, and by $10.9
million to $8.0 million, respectively, primarily due to:
s  $9.2 million Part V1.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends
section); and
¢ higher short term interest rates on cash investments.

This increase was partially offset by:
« increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class [ Non-Voting share prices since December 31, 2006.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation’s wholly owned subsidiary,
CU Inc.:
*  ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and
Yukon Electrical;
e the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.; and
¢ the Battle River and Sheemess generating plants of Alberta Power (2000).
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Regulated operations in Alberta (except for the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000)) are subject to a generic
cost of capital regime:

s in July 2004, the AEUB issued the generic cost of capital decision which established, among other things:

o a standardized approach for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of
return on cOmImon equity;
= rate of return adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term Government of Canada bond
yield as forecast; and
= adjustment mechanism similar to the method the National Energy Board uses in determining its
formula based rate of return;
o the capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB; and

¢ in November 2005, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006;

» in January 2006, the AEUB clarified that the generic return on equity determined on an annual basis in
accordance with the generic cost of capital decision should apply to each year of the test period in the
companies’ applications. If no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then there will be no
adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year; and

+ in November 2006, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.51% for 2007.

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines purchase information technology services, and ATCO Electric and
ATCO Gas also purchase customer care and billing services, from ATCO I-Tek. The recovery of these costs in
customer rates is subject to AEUB approval. Since 2003, the costs have been approved on a placeholder basis, and
are subject to final AEUB approval after completion of the collaborative benchmarking process.

ATCO Electric

In March 2006, the AEUB issued a decision on ATCO Electric’s 2005 and 2006 General Tariff Application
(*ATCO Electric GTA Decision™):

e which established, among other things, the amount of revenue to be collected in 2005 and 2006 from
customers for transmission and distribution services and approved a return on common equity as
determined by the AEUB'’s standardized rate of return methodology — 9.5% in 2005 and 8.93% in 2006;

*  ATCO Electric’s 2005 earnings were negatively impacted by $1.3 million, recorded in first quarter of 2006;
and

e ATCO Electric’s 2006 earnings were reduced by an additional $1.6 million, compared to 2005 earnings,
recorded throughout 2006.

In August 2006, the AEUB approved the AESO application for the need to improve transmission infrastructure in
northwest Alberta:
» AEUB decision grants the AESO approval to assign to the Transmission Facility Owner, ATCO Electric,
work consisting of several distinct projects which will result in 725 kilometres of new transmission line to
be constructed by 2011
o in June 2007, the first of these distinct projects was assigned to ATCO Electric by the AESO. This
project consists of a 235 kilometre transmission line with an estimated cost of $210 million, and is
anticipated to be completed by 2010. ATCO Electric has applied to the AEUB for approval to build
and operate this project; and
o as a result of price escalation caused by the change in completion date of the remaining distinet
projects (post 2010), coupled with the increasing costs of construction in Alberta, ATCQ Electric is
unable, at this time, to estimate the cost of the entire project; and
¢ ATCO Electric anticipates that an additional 180 kilometres of transmission line projects will be required in
its service area over the next five years.

In November 2006, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2007 and 2008 test
years:
e requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta,
¢ adecision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until late 2007;
s in November 2006, ATCO Electric filed an application requesting interim refundable rates for transmission
and distribution operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tanff application; and
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¢ on December 19, 2006, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving interim refundable
rate increases amounting to 50% of ATCQ Electric’s requested increases for transmission and distribution
operations.

ATCO Gas

In January 2006, the AEUB issued a decision on ATCO Gas® 2005, 2006 and 2007 General Rate Application
(“ATCO Gas GRA Decision™):

e which, among other things, established the amount of revenue to be collected over the period 2005 to 2007
from customers for natural gas distribution service and approved a return on common equity as determined
by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return methodology — 9.5% in 2005, 8.93% in 2006 and 8.51% in
2007.

In May 2006, the City of Calgary filed a Review and Variance application with the AEUB for the ATCO Gas GRA
Deciston:
s the application alleges that the AEUB made errors in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision related to the
calculation of working capital needed by ATCO Gas to operate its Carbon natural gas storage facility;
o the AEUB issued its decision on January 17, 2007, denying the City of Calgary’s application; and
» on February 15, 2007, the City of Calgary filed for leave to appeal this decision with the Alberta Court of
Appeal. The appeal was heard on June 19, 2007.

In October 2006, ATCO Gas also filed a Review and Variance application with the AEUB for the ATCO Gas GRA
Decision:
s the application alleges that the AEUB made errors in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision related to the
approved level of administrative expenses;
s in December 2006, the AEUB issued a decision in which it acknowledged an error for a portion of the
administrative expenses in question;
* on April 18,2007, ATCO Gas was advised by the AEUB that it would grant ATCO Gas’ request to hear its
Review and Variance application. A schedule for the hearing has not yet been determined; and
e on May 30, 2007, the AEUB issued a written process to be completed by September 5, 2007. A final
AEUB decision is not expected untit the fourth quarter of 2007,

ATCO Gas owns a 43.5 petajoule natural gas storage facility located at Carbon, Alberta. ATCO Gas has leased the
entire storage capacity of the facility to ATCO Midstream. ATCO Gas has taken the position that the facility is no
longer required for utility service and should be removed from regulation. In the process of obtaining AEUB
approval, the following events are significant:

» in July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the
facility;

» in June 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition to addressing other
matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the authority, when necessary in the public interest, to direct
a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility;

ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal;

in October 2005, the AEUB established processes to review the use of the facility for utility purposes;

a hearing to review the use of the facility for revenue generation was held in April 2006 and a hearing to
review the use of the facility for load balancing was held in June 2006. On October 11, 2006, the AEUB
issued a decision confirming ATCO Gas’ position that the facility is no longer required for utility service
with respect to the use of the facility for load balancing purposes. The City of Calgary has filed a leave to
appeal and a Review and Variance application of this decision;

+ on February 5, 2007, the AEUB issued a decision in which it determined that a legitimate utility use for the
facility is that it be used for purposes of generating revenues to offset customer rates. This decision
requires ATCO Gas to maintain the status quo with respect to the use of the Carbon facility including the
lease of the entire storage facility to ATCO Midstream. On February 26, 2007, ATCO Gas filed for leave
to appeal this decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal (refer 1o Business Risks — Regulated Operations —
Carbon Natural Gas Storage Facility section); and

» the Alberta Court of Appeal has set a hearing to address the ATCO Gas leave to appeal with respect to the
Carbon storage facility for September 18, 2007,
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ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances (the process whereby third party natural gas supplies are reconciled to amounts actually
shipped in the Corporation’s pipelines) that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account:

s in April 2005, the AEUB issued a decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance
adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The decision resulted in a decrease to ATCO Gas’ 2005 revenues and
earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively; and

» the City of Calgary filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas filed a cross appeal of the
AEUB’s decision. The leave to appeal was heard by the Alberta Court of Appeal on April 18, 2006. On
July 7, 2006, the Alberta Court of Appeal issued its decision granting the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal
on the question of whether the AEUB erred in law or jurisdiction in assuming that it had the authority to
allow recovery in 2005, for costs relating to prior years. ATCO Gas’ cross appeal was denied. At a
hearing on April 13, 2007, the Alberta Court of Appeal declined to consider the City of Calgary's appeal
and referred the jurisdictional question back to the AEUB.

ATCO Pipelincs

In March 2007, the AEUB directed ATCO Pipelines to file its next General Rate Application by October 1, 2007,
ATCO Pipelines anticipates that the filing will include the 2008 and 2009 test years:
» requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta; and
» adecision from the AEUB on the General Rate Application is not expected until the third quarter of 2008,

The AEUB has refocused attention to its review of the competitive natural gas pipeline issues under AEUB
jurisdiction. This review is expecled to address compelitive issues between ATCO Pipelines and NOVA Gas
Transmission Lid. The AEUB will distribute the final issues list by July 31, 2007, and a process schedule to address
these issues by August 28, 2007.

Other Matters

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for
which decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Funds generated by operations provide a substantial portion of the Corporation’s cash requirements. Additional
cash requirements are met externally through bank borrowings and the issuance of long term and non-recourse long
term debt and preferred shares. Commercial paper borrowings and short term bank loans are used to provide
flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing,

Funds generated by operations for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $27.2 million to $163.3
million, primarily due to:
* increased earnings.

Funds gencrated by operations for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $53.7 million to $395.5
million, primarily due to:
* increased earnings.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ 2006 proceeds received from the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section).

Investing for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $32.8 million to $144.2 million, and by
$53.5 million to $268.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:

+ higher capital expenditures;

¢ changes in non-current deferred electricity costs; and

¢ changes in non-cash working capital.
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This increase was partially offset by:
¢ H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

Purchase of property, plant and equipment for the three and six menths ended June 30, 2007, increased by $19.6
million to $148.1 million, and by $31.1 million to $271.8 million, respectively, primarily due to:
» increased investment in regulated electric distribution and transmission projects and regulated natural gas
distribution projects.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation issued:
* no long term debt.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation redeemed:
* no long term debt; and
=  $66.1 million of non-recourse long term debt,

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $66.1 million

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation issued:
* o long term debt.

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation redeemed:
+ no long term debt; and
*  $91.2 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $91.2 million.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation issued:
* $115.0 millien of equity preferred shares.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation redeemed:
¢ $£126.5 million of equity preferred shares.

These changes resulted in a net equity preferred share decrease of $11.5 million.

Net purchase of Class A shares for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $28.2 mllion, and
by $28.8 million, respectively, primarily due to:
* higher share purchases in 2006,

Forcign currency translation for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, negatively impacted the
Corporation’s cash position by $10.5 million, and by $11.7 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e changes in U.K. and Australian exchange rates.

On Apnl 18, 2007, CU Inc., a subsidiary corporation, issued $115.0 million Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares Series 1 at a price of $25.00 per share for cash. The dividend rate was fixed at 4.60%. The net proceeds of
the issue were used in part to redeem, on May 18, 2007, $91.8 million of the outstanding Cumuliative Redeemable
Second Preferred Shares Series Q, R and S of ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines, subsidiary
corperations of CU Inc., that were held by the Corporation.

On May 18, 2007, the Corporation redeemed all of the $126.5 million of outstanding Cumulative Redeemable
Second Preferred Shares Series Q, R and S at a price of $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends per
share.




At June 30, 2007, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for general corporate
purposes.

Total Used Available
(% Millions)
Long term committed .......coiviiciieiniiiiicnnsrenars e s e s 326.0 48.9 2771
Short term COMIMITEd .....ooveiiis e re e e e e e e ce e e eeesnens 600.0 10.0 590.0
LURCOMIMIIE ... iiviiiri i ee i iitrasesiasrsnesbbrerinsrinreberensrbarerinsttarassors 74.1 11.0 63.1
TOMAL .ot ee b e e e st sebaab e e b e et e e e saetaeeateemeeereeenrenes 1,000.] 69.9 930.2

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Contractuai obligations disclosed in the 2006 MD&A remain substantially unchanged as at June 30, 2007,

Net current and fong term future income tax liabilities of $197.0 million at June 30, 2007, are attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 23, 2006, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 5% of the
outstanding Class A shares. The bid expired on May 22, 2007. Over the life of the bid 1,679,700 shares were
purchased, all of which were purchased in 2006. On May 23, 2007, the Corporation commenced a new normal
course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 5% of the outstanding Class A shares. The bid will expire on May 22,
2008. From May 23, 2007, to July 24, 2007, no shares have been purchased to date.

For the first quarter of 2007, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class A and Class B shares was
increased by £0.015 to $0.305 per share. For the second quarter of 2007, the quarterly dividend on the
Corporation’s Class A and Class B shares was increased by $0.01 to $30.315 per share. The Corporation has
increased its annual common share dividend each year since its inception as a holding company in 1972, The
payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the
Corporation and other factors.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At July 24, 2007, the Corporation had outstanding 81,607,324 Class A shares, 43,826,346 Class B shares and
options to purchase 1,323,000 Class A shares.

BUSINESS RISKS
Environmental Matters

On April 26, 2007 the federal government released a plan that proposes mandatory greenhouse gas (“GHG™)
emission targeis on industry. The proposed plan requires an initial reduction in 2010 of 18% from 2006 levels
followed thereafter by annual reductions of an additional 2%. New facilities (2004 or later) are allowed a 3 year
grace peried after which they must improve emission intensity by 2% per year below the clean fuel standard.
Compliance may be achieved by reduction or capture, limited investment in a technology fund, emission credit
trading, purchase of offset credits, Kyoto Protocol Clean Development Mechanisms (maximum 10%) and early
action credits. Specific details on the regulations have yet to be released and will be required to assess the financial
impact of the federal framework. While it 1s not certain, it is anticipated that the PPAs will allow the Corporation to
recover most of the costs associated with complying with the new regulations,
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In March 2007, the Government of Alberta introduced legislation (Bill 3, Climate Change and Emissions
Management Amendment Act and the Specified Gas Emitters Regulation Amendment) that will require Alberta
facilities that emit 100,000 tonnes or more of GHG to reduce facility emission intensities by 12% starting July 1,
2007. Units commissioned before January 1, 2000, or that have less than nine years of commercial operation are
required to reduce their emission intensity by 2% per year starting in the fourth year of commercial operation to a
maximum of 12% in the ninth year of commercial operation. The current framework has proposed that cogeneration
units with emissions less than a deemed emission target based on a stand-alone natural gas combined cycle unit and
conventional boiler will be eligible for credits. Specific details on the regulations have yet to be finalized and will
be required to assess the financial impact of the provincial framework. While it is not certain, it is anticipated that
the PPAs will allow the Corporation to recover most of the costs associated with complying with the new
regulations.

Alberta Environment implemented a mercury emission regulation in March 2006. The regulation requires coal-fired
plant operators, including Alberta Power (2000), to monitor mercury emissions and capture at least 70% of the
mercury in the coal starting January 1, 2011. While it is not certain, it is anticipated that the PPAs will allow the
Corporation to recover most of the costs associated with complying with the new regulation.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area. The
AEUB may approve interim rates or approve the recovery of costs, including capital and operating costs, on a
placeholder basis, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks faced by
companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit a
reasenable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Carbon Natural Gas Storage Facility

ATCO Gas leases the entire storage capacity of the Carbon natural gas storage facility to ATCO Midstream at
AFEUB approved placeholder rates. On February 5, 2007, the AEUB issued a decision to ATCO Gas that leaves in
question these placeholder rates and the effect that these placeholder rates will have on future ATCO Gas revenues
(refer to Repulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Weather

Weather fluctuations have a significant impact on throughput in ATCO Gas. Since approximately 50% of ATCO
Gas’ delivery charge is recovered based on throughput, ATCO Gas’ revenues and ecarnings are sensitive to weather.
Weather that is 10% warmer or colder than normal temperatures impacts annual earnings by approximately
$10.0 million.

ATCO I-Tek Services

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines purchase information technology services, and ATCQ Electric and
ATCO Gas also purchase customer care and billing services, from ATCO [-Tek. The recovery of these costs in
customer rates is subject to AEUB approval. Since 2003, the costs have been approved on a placeholder basis, and
are subject to final AEUB approval after completion of the collaborative benchmarking process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML™), a subsidiary of Centrica plc.

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
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natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Flectric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica ple, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

The Corporation has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations to DEML contemplated under the transaction agreements.

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills

As a result of decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition of late
payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at this time
the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.

Alberta Power (2000)

Included in regulated operations are the Battle River and Sheerness generating plants of Alberta Power (2000),
which were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now govemned by legislatively mandated
PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the
PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their
forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become
deregulated upon the earlier of one year after the expiry of a PPA or a decision to continue to operate the plant.
Alberta Power (2000) has one year after the expiry of a PPA to determine whether to decommission the generating
plant in order to fully recover plant decommissioning costs or to continue to operate the plant. Each PPA is to
remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant or December 31,
2020.

Substantially all the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s. Under the PPA’s,
Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating unit available to the purchaser
of the PPA for that unit. In retum, Alberta Power (2000) is entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs
for that unit from the PPA purchaser, including a return on commeon equity equal to the long term Government of
Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be
determined by indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual
results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s were based.

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit
availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for avatlability in excess of
predetermined targets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the availability
targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

At June 30, 2007, the Corporation had recorded $42.6 million of deferred availability incentives.

Fuel costs in Alberta Power (2000) are mostly for coal supply. To protect against volatility in coal prices, Alberta
Power (2000) owns or has sufficient coal supplies under long term contracts for the anticipated lives of its Battle
River and Sheemess coal-fired generating plants. These contracts are at prices that are either fixed or indexed to
inflation.
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Measurement Inaccuracies in Metering Facilities

Measurement inaccuracies occur from time to time with respect to ATCO Electric’s, ATCO Gas’ and ATCO
Pipelines’ metering facilities. Measurement adjustments are settled between the parties based on the requirements
of the Electricity and Gas Inspections Act (Canada) and applicable regulations issued pursuant thereto. There is a
risk of disallowance of the recovery of a measurement adjustment if controls and timely follow up are found to be
inadequate by the AEUB.

A recent AEUB decision applicable 1o ATCO Gas established a two year adjustment limitation period for
inaccuracies in gas supply costs, including measurement inaccuracies in metering facilities. The AEUB stated that it
will consider specific applications for adjustments beyond the two year limitation period.
Non-Regulated Operations

ATCO Power

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in
the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period December 2002 to June 2007.

Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future, 1t is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments.

Since October 2004, the output from ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant previously sold to TXU Europe (refer
to TXU Europe Settlement section) has been sold into the U.K. power exchange market. In the U.K., electricity
generators, on average, sell over 90% of their output to electricity suppliers in bilateral contracts, use power
exchanges for approximately 7% of their output, and sell the remaining 2-3% via the Balancing Mechanism.
Approximately 40% of the electricity generated is supplied from natural gas-fired generating plants, and in 2006 the
market experienced an increase in electricity prices due to the increased world prices for natural gas. Since then,
natural gas prices have softened with additional natural gas infrastructure coming on stream and the slightly lower
oil prices. Nevertheless, the Barking generating plant has a long term, fixed price gas purchase agreement and, as a
result, has been able to experience increased margins due to the high market prices for electricity. Changes in the
U.K. market electricity prices may have an impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in
the future.

ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditions may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations (refer to Results of Operations —
Consolidated Operations section).

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other NGL from natural gas streams at its extraction plants. These products
are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based amrangements. Changes in market
conditions may impact the Corporation’s eamings and cash flow from NGL extraction operations,

ATCO Frontec

ATCO Frontec’s operations include providing support to military agencies in foreign locations which may be
subject to political risk.

A fuel spill occurred in January 2007 at the Brevoort Istand, Northwest Territories radar site maintained by Nasittug
Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation. The
Corporation believes that it has sufficient insurance coverage in place to cover any material amounts that might
become payable as a result of the fuel spill. Accordingly, this spill is not expected to have any material impact on
the financial position of the Corporation.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. On an on-going basis, management reviews its
estimates, particularly those related to depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-
lived assets, amottization of deferred availability incentives, asset retirement obligations and employee future
benefits, using currently available information. Changes in facts and circumnstances may result in revised estimates,
and actual results could differ from those estimates. The Corporation’s critical accounting estimates are discussed
below.

Deferred Availability Incentives

Alberta Power (2000) is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit availability. As at June 30,
2007, the Corporation had recorded $42.6 million of deferred availability incentives. For the three and six months
ended June 30, 2007, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in revenues, amounted
to $3.0 million and $5.9 million, respectively.

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future electricity
prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the Corporation uses these estimates to forecast high case, low case
and most likely scenarios for the incentives to be received from, less penalties to be paid to, the PPA counterparties.
These forecasts are added to the accumnulated unamortized deferred availability incentives outstanding at the end of
the quarter; the resulting tota! is divided by the remaining term of the PPA (o arrive at the amortization for the
quarter.

Compared to the most likely scenario recorded in revenues for the year 1o date, the high case scenario would have
resulted in higher revenues of approximately $2.4 million, whereas the low case scenario would have resulted in
lower revenues of approximately $2.3 million.

Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate plus an equity and management premivm that reflects the plan asset mix. Actual
balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1.5%, which, when added to the
long bond yield rate of 5.1% at the beginning of 2007, resulted in an expected long term rate of return of 6.6% for
2007. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return assumptions for the
Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal equity risk premiums,
and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of retumn to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past five years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.1% in the year ended December 31, 20086; the rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, was
increased to 6.6%. The result has been a decrease in the expected return on plan assets and a corresponding increase
in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan assets over the same period has been lower than
expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also confributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses
are amortized to earnings.

The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects market interest rates on
high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount
rate has also declined over the same period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.1% at the end of 2006; the rate has
remained at 5.1% in the three and six months ended June 30, 2007. The result has been an increase in benefit
obligations (i.., an experience loss), which is contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are
amortized to earnings.
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In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued this
amortization during the three and six months ended June 30, 2007,

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, are as follows: for drug costs, 7.8% starting in
2007 grading down over six years to 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2007 and thereafter.
Combined with lower recent claims experience, the effect of these changes has been o decrease the costs of other
post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of
employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
{*CICA™) recommendations pertaining to financial instruments, which establish standards for the recognition,
measurement, disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives.
These recommendations require that fair value be used to measure financial assets that are held for trading or
available for sale, financial liabilities that are held for trading and all derivative financial instruments. Other
financial assets, such as loans and receivables and investments that are held to maturity, and other financial
liabilities are measured at their carrying value. This change in accounting had the following effect on the

consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007:

(a) Recognition of interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and certain natural gas purchase contracts
as derivative assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements (refer to Note 10 to the unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2007).

(b) Recognition of the fair value of a power generation revenue contract liability associated with the natural gas
purchase contracts derivative asset (refer to Note 10 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
for the six months ended June 30, 2007).

(c) Recognition of a mark-to-market adjustment for the change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts
derivative asset and recognition of an adjustment to the associated power generation revenue conlract liability
(refer to Note 6 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June 30,
2007).

{d) Restatement of opening retained eamings at January 1, 2007, to recognize the prior years’ eamnings effect of the
natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset and the associated power generation revenue'contract liability, as
well as the prior years” eamings effect of accounting for certain financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost using the effective interest method (refer to Note 5 to the unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2007).

{e) Reclassification of deferred financing charges from other assets to long term debt and non-recourse long term
debt (refer to Note 7 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June
30, 2007).

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to hedges,
which establish standards for the identification, designation, documentation and effectiveness of hedging
relationships for the purpose of applying hedge accounting. The purpose of hedge accounting is to ensure that gains,
losses, revenues and expenses from effective hedging relationships are recorded in eamings in the same period. This
change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June
30, 2007.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
reporting and disclosure of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income consists of changes in the equity of the
Corporation from sources other than the Cerporation’s share owners, and includes eamings of the Corporation, the
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foreign currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining foreign operations and unrealized gains and losses
on changes in fair values of awvailable-for-sale assets and effective cash flow hedging instruments. Other
comprehensive income comprises revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are recognized in comprehensive income
but are excluded from earnings of the period. Comprehensive income is disclosed in a separate statement in the
consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
presentation of equity and changes in equity. These recommendations require separate presentation of the
components of equity, including retained earnings, accumulated other comprehensive income, contributed surplus,
share capital and reserves, and the changes therein. As a result of this change in accounting, the Corporation has
included a reconciliation of accumulated other comprehensive income in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements (refer to Note 11 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June
30, 2007). In accordance with the recommendations, comparative figures have been adjusted to incorporate the
foreign currency translation adjustment into accumulated other comprehensive income.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation adopted the CICA recommendations that prescribe the criteria for
changing accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment and disclosure of changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimales and corrections of errors. Adoption of these recommendations had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, except for the
disclosure of accounting changes that have been issued by the CICA but have not yet been adopted by the
Corporation because they are not effective until a future date (refer to Future Accounting Changes below).

Future Accounting Changes

The CICA has issued new accounting recommendations for capital disclosures which require disclosure of both
qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial stalements to evaluate the Corporation’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation
beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for disclosure and presentation of financial instruments
which require disclosures of beth qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the Corporation is exposed.
These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008,

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for measurernent and disclosure of inventories which
provide guidance on the determination of cost and ils subseguent recognition as an expense, including any
writedown to net realizable value, and on the cost formulas that are used to assign costs to inventories, The
Corporation is unable to determine at this time the effect of adopting these recommendations on earnings or assets of
the Corporation. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2007

TO THE SHARE OWNERS:

Canadian Utilities Limited reported increased earnings of $81.1 million ($0.65 per share) for the
three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to earnings of $70.2 million ($0.56 per share) for the same
three months of 2006. Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007, were $215.8 million ($1.72 per
share) compared to earnings of $157.1 million ($1.24 per share) for the same six months in 2006.

Financial Summary For the Three Months For the Six Months
Ended June 30 Ended June 30
2007 2006 2007 2006
(8 Millions except per share data)
(unaudited)
Barnings ...coovieeeeeeeeeiecr et e 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1
Eamings per Class A and B share. ... 0.65 0.56 1.72 1.24
Revenues ... 560.3 5634 1,257.9 1,205.4
Funds generated by operations  ...........cooccoverenen. 163.3 136.1 395.5 341.8

) This measure is cash generated from operations before changes in non-cash working capital and is not defined by Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. This measure may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to:

s  $16.4 million adjustment relating to the 2007 change in the taxation of preferred share dividends. In the
second quarter of 2007, the federal government amended legislation on the taxation of preferred share
dividends paid. This change, which was retroactive to 2003, resulted in a reduction in income tax
expense that was recorded in the second quarter of 2007. As the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™)
has been assessing corporate tax returns based on this proposed change since January 1, 2003, the
recently enacted change will not affect the Corporation’s cash position. (“Change in the Taxation of
Preferred Share Dividends™);

+ colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and

« an interest and income tax expense that was recorded by Alberta Power (2000) in the second quarter of
2006. This adjustment, which reduced carnings in the second quarter of 2006 by $8.0 million,
pertained to a CRA assessment on the taxation of proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner
generating plant in 2001 (“H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment™).

This increase was partially offset by:

o $11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect decreased federal and provincial taxes and rates; and

¢ the timing and lower demand for natural gas storage capacity sold, lower storage fees and lower
volumes and margins for natural gas liquids (“NGL”) in ATCO Midstream.




Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to:

o Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends;

e colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas;

¢ the timing and higher demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO
Midstream; and

 H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006.

This increase was partially offset by:
e $11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect decreased federal and provincial taxes and rates; and

o higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates,

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased primarily due to:

e lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no
margin” basis, lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction, and the timing
and lower demand of natural gas storage capacity sold and lower storage fees in ATCO Midstream;
and

o lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s UK.
operations.

This decrease was partially offset by:

* impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the Alberta Energy
and Utilities Board in December 2006; and

* colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to:

e the timing and higher demand of natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO
Midstream; and

¢ impact of 2007 interim customer rate increase for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in
December 2006,

This increase was partially offset by:

e lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a
“no margin” basis and lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction in
ATCO Midstream; and

e Jlower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’'s UK.
operations.

Funds generated by operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased
primarily due to increased earnings.

Other Recent Highlights include:

o ATCO Electric has applied to the AEUB for approval to build and operate a new 240-kV electric
transmission line in northwest Alberta. This 235 kilometre transmission line starts in the Wabasca
area and ends in the Peace River region and has an estimated cost of $210 million. ATCO Electric
anticipates completing the project by 2010 and plans to begin construction in late 2007.

s ATCO Power will build a second natural gas-fired 45 megawatt (MW) power plant in Valleyview,
Alberta. This “peaking” facility is designed to solidify provincial grid stability while providing quick
access to additional power and is expected to be completed in 2008.




¢ UQSUQ Corporation, a joint venture between ATCO Frontec and Inuit owned companies in the
Arctic, has been awarded a five year contract renewal to lease and operate the bulk fuel storage
facility, the pipeline distribution system and the municipal fuel distribution system in Iqaluit,
Nunavut.

¢ ATCO Frontec has been awarded five contracts to provide multiple support services for up to five
years at the Kandahar Airfield in Afghanistan for the more than 10,000 troops serving NATO’s
International Security Assistance Force.

Canadian Utilities Limited is part of the ATCO Group of Companies. ATCO Group, an Albetta based
worldwide organization of companies with assets of approximately $7.8 billion and more than 7,000
employees, is comprised of three main business divisions: Power Generation; Utilities (natural gas and
electricity transmission and distribution) and Global Enterprises, with companies active in industrial
manufacturing, technology, logistics and energy services. More information about Canadian Ultilities
Limited can be found on its website www.canadian-utilities.com.

A SmAe YAV

N.C. Southemn R.D. Southern
President & Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Canadian Utilities Limited
(the “Corporation™) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ¢nded June 30, 2007, and the audited consolidated financial statements and
management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December
31, 2006 (“2006 MD&A”). Information contained in the 2006 MD&A that is not discussed in this document
remains substantially unchanged. Additional information relating to the Corporation, including the Corporation’s
Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The equity securities of the Corporation consist of Class A non-voting shares {“Class A shares”) and Class B
common shares (“Class B shares™).

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

Forward-LooKing INfOIMAtION ...........oocoeveveciiieieeeei st bttt sesn e e e s antesesn s s e ssansmn st etetos 4
NON-GAAP FINancial MEASUTES .........ccoiiiiiiiiiieiesieirieniet sttt etesteseteetesteaseteatantessaeensnsaassasnssemseseensnseseesasessnnntns 5
Internal Control Over Financial RepOrting .........cooooiiri et 5
Business 0F the COTPOTAION............iccviiiieiisereesteressnssessistesesres esesieseas e et esmesasssessbassstesssbesessesasssssesrsrsssesasatasessns 5
Natural Gas Purchase Contracts and Associated Power Generation Revenue Contract Liability .......ccocovvererenencne. 5
TXU Burope SEUIEIMENT ..ot s st e st st sre e e b e neersesees e e e sren 6
H.R. Milner Income Tax ReasseSSmMENt.........ocuiiiimiieiieeie ettt e e e n s bbb e ab e e asbaenaas 6
2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends........cocccieiiinin i se e srsenen 6
2006 Changes in Income Taxes and RALES ..........ccvovereeriiriiorermienecriae it venesnsesesssssssasesesssssvsnasesesnesoressesconsn 7
Selected Quarterly INfOIMALION ..o e sttt s s b e et e reen s ese e e rere s e esnesnanis 7
RESUIS OF OPEIALIONS. .- i etetiiitre ettt e et et e saeete e s e e eesssesense s ansee e ansansamtesbesrersees e seersTamera e e orermmsesesmanseesassens 8
Consolidated OPeraliOons ... iieiirieeiire e ettt e et et e st e st et st e st e s ete st s atetesseasssbenbereenearesaentasaneeanenns 8
Segmented INfOTTNATION. .......c..coiii bbbttt et b bbbt et ene 11
LT HIES ettt eyttt et et e e ee e et e e eh et ese e e e e et eeme e e e e e SarabesaerrTar oA Ran AR e S e beente s £er s et etanen 11
POWET GENEIALION. ... eiitirirarsrerereseeiaesteeeieteiaeasteaeeneeameeseeaeeaeeaeeaeeasesme e e et em et eaansesnsssesnsermees b srersbesnansgossamsannennnanes 12
GODAE EMIETPTISES .o ereeeriiriiice et ettt ettt bt b e b e bs s e b abs et e rersseasesnr et eseenetensenneses 14
Corporate and Oher ... e e v ettt et st eaesr e et eaean et eresae e rraen 16
REFUIAIOTY MALETS ..o et ar s e ro s e et e e se s s s st s s s aear e e s eseassrarseresasenesnss 16
ATCO ELBCITIC ... rs e st s e etees e st e s e s e e s resa s e en s s em b e rmmaecn s Tesemtasatssnsarstesas et sarseessesanbanseeaseearessrrrans 17
F L O 0 I € T OO OOy UUOU UV YU YU PO UOVETTRT TP 18
ATCO PIPELIES ...ivtiiieteire ettt ettt et eaee st e st ea e e e et e et ee e e b ebeas b e s es s e s e s ae st eeeaea e se et asneaeeseemsens 19
Liquidity and Capital RESOUICES........ ..ottt ea e ettt et e st e et sb e e r e e e e e b e s e e eneebe e ecenes 19
Outstanding Share Data ... ... e s et e st e stsebestaeesssesssereeeasbasatestesnenenrenss 21
BUSINESS RUSKS ...t bbbt s r bbbt bbb 21
Environmental MAIELS ...uii oottt e e e cea e e e e e s e esb e st e b s s a4 s s ra ot seetesnanseemnensansnanteeneseenseesaeaen 21
Regulated OPEeTatiOns...........oiiirierirrerrerite et s esee et et e eec s eaee s rerse s as et ssesesseasanasarenseressesmsnssesserensomses 22
NoN-Regulated OPerations...........cceiivrieeiorieiee ettt et te st et et atsssass st b et sae st b esesbasesnesnasserseseenensesnenens 24
Critical AcCOUNtNG ESTIMAUES ........oiiviiriiieiieeerere ittt ettt ee et re et st es e se st ese e esess e s esessrasensesnensanseseanensnnes 26
Changes in ACCOUNUIE POICIES ........coviiiiersitissirinssissesseses e seaeieie et eeceaeee e et es it sbessssseasbesseasesssasessnns ressstersassessenses 27

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate™, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks,

uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
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such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such
forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to contractual obligations, planned capital
expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation and non-regulated generating capacity subject to long
term contracts. The Corporation’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive factors in the industries in which the Corporation
operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the
Corporation,

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In this MD&A, reference is made to funds generated by operations, which is a measure that does not have a
standardized meaning under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™). Funds generated by
operations is calculated on the Corporation’s consolidated statement of cash flows from operating activities before
changes in non-cash working capital. In the Corporation’s opinion, funds generated by operations is a significant
performance indicator of the Corporation’s ability to generate cash flow to fund its capital expenditures.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three
months ended June 30, 2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, corporate transactions are accounted for as
Corporate and Other (refer to Note 13 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended June 30, 2007). Transactions between Business Groups are ¢liminated in all reporting of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial information.

NATURAL GAS PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND ASSOCIATED POWER GENERATION REVENUE
CONTRACT LIABILITY

The Corporation has long term contracts for the supply of natural gas for certain of its power generation projects.
Under the terms of certain of these contracts, the volume of natural gas that the Corporation is entitled to take is in
excess of the natural gas required to generate power. As the excess volume of natural gas can be sold, the
Corporation is required to designate these entire contracts as derivative instruments. The Corporation recognized a
nen-current derivative asset of $59.0 million on January 1, 2007, thereafier, the Corporation will record mark-10-
market adjustments through earnings as the fair values of these contracts change with changes in future natural gas
prices. These natural gas purchase contracts mature in November 2014,

As all but the excess volume of natural gas is committed to the Corporation’s power generation obligations, the
Corporation could not recognize the entire fair values of these natural gas purchase contracts in its revenues.
Consequently, on January 1, 2007, the Corporation recognized a provision for a power generation revenue contract
in the amount of $44.8 million; thereafier, the Corporation will record adjustments to the power generation revenue
contract liability concurrently with the mark-to-market adjustments for the natural gas purchase contracts derivative
asset. This power generation revenue contract liability is included in deferred credits in the consolidated balance
sheet.




The mark-to-market adjustment for the derivative asset and the corresponding adjustment for the associated power
generation revenue contract liability decreased eamings by $2.0 million, net of income taxes, for the three months
ended June 30, 2007, and increased earnings by $2.5 million, net of income taxes, for the six months ended June 30,
2007 (“Mark-to-Market Adjustment™),

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe™) which had a long term “off take™ agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power
Limited (“Barking Power"), has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of
contract related to TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating
plant. Following negotiations with the administrators, an agreement was reached with respect to Barking Power’s
claim,

In settlement of its claim, Barking Power received distributions of £144.5 million (approximately $327 million) in
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $83.1 million, and distributions of £34.8 million (approximately $71
million} in 2006, of which the Corporation’s share was $18.2 million. Income taxes of approximately $28.5 miilion
relating to the distributions have been paid.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect on March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
earnings will be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time that the earnings are
recognized.

On May 31, 2007, £95.0 million of the TXU proceeds (of which the Corporation’s share is $52.7 million), were
applied to Barking Power’s non-recourse long term debt.

H.R. MILNER INCOME TAX REASSESSMENT

In the third quarter of 2006, the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) issued a reassessment for Alberta Power
(2000)’s 2001 taxation year. The CRA’s reassessment treats the proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner
generating plant to the Alberta Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation has
made submissions to the CRA opposing the CRA’s position. The full impact of the reassessment was a $12.4
million increase in interest and income tax expense, a $12.4 million decrease in earnings ($8.0 million recorded in
the second quarter of 2006 and $4.4 million recorded in the third quarter of 2006), and a $28.8 million payment
associated with the tax and interest assessed, paid in the third quarter of 2006. It is expected that $16.4 million of
this cash payment will be recovered by reducing income taxes payable through higher capital cost allowance claims
in future years.

2007 CHANGE IN THE TAXATION OF PREFERRED SHARE DIVIDENDS

On June 15, 2007, an amendment to tax legislation pertaining to the taxation of preferred share dividends paid by
corporations received third reading in the House of Commons. This change pertains to taxes paid by corporations
that pay dividends on taxable preferred shares (Part V1.1 tax). Prior to this change, corporations that paid Part V1.1
tax were entitled to an income tax deduction equal to 9/4ths of the Part V1.1 tax paid. This deduction was increased
to 9/3rds of the Part V1.1 tax paid effective January 1, 2003. The CRA has been assessing corporate tax returns
based on this proposed change since January 1, 2003, resulting in a reduction of taxes paid to the CRA. As this
change is now considered to have been substantively enacted, the Corporation recorded a reduction to current
income tax expense of $16.4 million in the second quarter of 2007. Funds generated by operations increased by
$16.4 million, offset by a similar reduction in changes in non-cash working capital, leaving the Corporation’s cash
position unchanged (“Part V1.1 Tax Adjustment”).




The earnings impact of the Part V1.1 Tax Adjustment by Business Group is as follows:

Years Prior First Quarter

to 2007 of 2007 Total
{$ Millions)
UTHHEIES 1.vevveerseeeesscereseaee e e et s e ne e ee b sam b b ssesbabaes 4.2 0.2 4.4
Power GENeration .........ccocecieveereerenieinn st seeecsnennans 1.3 0.1 1.4
Global ENterprises .......cccoveeverecnre s eenens 14 - 1.4
Corporate and Other ..o e, 8.7 0.5 9.2
TOUAL . covitrniereieee sttt et ee et e s sk bas e e s 15.6 0.8 16.4

2006 CHANGES IN INCOME TAXES AND RATES

In 2006, Federal and provincial governments announced a number of changes to income taxes and rates, As a result
of these changes the Corporation made an adjustment to income taxes amounting to $11.8 million in the second
quarter of 2006, most of which related to future income taxes. The adjustment increased 2006 eamings by $11.8
million, of which $1.9 million related to the Utilities Business Group, $7.2 million to the Power Generation
Business Group, $2.3 million to the Global Enterprises Business Group and $0.4 million to Corporate and Other,

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

($ Millions except per share data) Mar.31  Jun.30  Sep. 30 Dec. 31
(unaudited)
2007 (1) (2)
REVENUES ..o s 697.6 5603 e,
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares.....___.......... 134.7 Bl.l it e
Earnings per Class A and Class B share ........occoevrcininncniniininnn, 1.07 0.65 it e
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share..........c.cccoovvvnne 1.07 0.64 i
2006 (1) (2)
REVENUES. ..o e e e e eae s s 642.0 563.4 553.9 671.1
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares...........cocoevee 86.9 70.2 66.8 100.0
Eamings per Class A and Class B share ... 0.68 0.56 0.53 (.80
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share............cccoecniins 0.68 0.55 0.53 0.80
2005 (1) (2)
L 1T U 537.4 680.3
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares......coccocvvvevves i vvervvvenens 46.5 89.1
Eamings per Class A and Class B share.........ciiiiis s e 0.37 0.70
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share .........ccooiiiis s i 0.37 0.69
Notes:

(1) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(2) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation's operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta, the timing
and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold, changes in natural gas storage fees and the timing of rate
decisions, revenues and earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(3) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that have caused variations in revenues and earnings over the eight most recently completed
quarters necessary to understand general trends that have developed and the seasonality of the businesses disclosed
in the 2006 MD&A remain substantially unchanged, except for the impact of the 2007 change in the taxation of
preferred share dividends.

Consolidated Operations

Revenues, earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares, and earnings and diluted earnings per share were as
follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2007 2006
(unaudited)
ReEVENUES (1) (2) criee et sres e n s evmss e sa b s sns s enen 560.3 563.4 1,257.9 1,205.4
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares (1) (2) ............. 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1
Earnings per Class A share and Class B share (1) (2) ccoceevveveeee 0.65 0.56 1.72 1.24
Diluted eamnings per Class A share and Class B share (1) (2)........... 0.64 0.55 1.7 1.23

Notes:

(1} There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

{2) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta, the timing
and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold, changes in natural gas storage fees and the timing of rate
decisions, revenues and earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(3) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepaved in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $3.1 million to $560.3 million, primarily due to:

¢ lower natural gas liquids {“NGL”) revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and
resold on a “no-margin” basis, lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction, and
the timing and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold and lower storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations - ATCO Midstream section);

e lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s United Kingdom
(“U.K.”) operations; and

e impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board
(“AEUB’) in the ATCO Gas General Rate Application (“GRA™) Decision recorded in the second quarter of
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

This decrease was partially offset by:
o impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
e colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
o higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $52.5 million to $1,257.9 million, primarily due to:

s the timing and demand of natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO Midstream section);

» impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);

» colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
impact of higher UK. exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s
U.K. operations.




This increase was partially offset by:

lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no-margin”
basis and lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction in ATCO Midstream;
lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and
impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision
recorded in the second quarter of 2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased by
$10.9 million ($0.09 per share) to $81.1 million {($0.65 per share), primarily due to:

$£16.4 million Part V1] Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section);

colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and

H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This increase was partially offset by:

$11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section);

the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold, lower storape fees and lower volumes and
margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO
Midstream section);

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and

higher operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation expenses in ATCO Gas due to customer
growth and increased capital expenditures.

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $58.7
million ($0.48 per share) 1o $215.8 million ($1.72 per share), primarily due to:

$16.4 mllion Part VI.I Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section);

colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas;

the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
{refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations - ATCO Midstream section); and

H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This increase was partially offset by:

$11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section);

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finaiization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);

higher operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation expenses in ATCO Gas due to customer
growth and increased capital expenditures;

increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Ltd. Class [ Non-Voting share prices since December 2006; and

lower volumes and margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated
Operations — ATCO Midstream section).

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $8.3 million
1o $332.3 million, and by $7.1 million to $690.7 million, respectively, primarily due to:

higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities;

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finahization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and

higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Gas due to customer growth and increased capital
expenditures.




This increase was partially offset by:
s lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and

s  lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no-margin™ basis for NGL exiraction in
ATCO Midstream.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $8.6
million to $83.3 million, and by $4.4 million to $175.2 million, respectively, primarily due to:
s one-time amortization charge of certain deferred items approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA
Decision recorded in the second gquarter of 2006.

This decrease was partially offset by:
s capital additions in 2007 and 2006.

Interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $7.0 million to $53.7 million, and
by $5.7 million to $108.3 million, respectively, primarily due to:

e repayment of non-recourse financings in 2007 and 2006; and

s H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

This decrease was partially offset by:
s interest on new financings issued in 2006 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations.

Interest and other income for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $1.8 million to $11.4 million,
primarily due to:
»  Mark-to-Market Adjustment (refer to Natural Gas Purchase Contracts and Associated Power Generation
Revenue Contract Liability section),

Interest and other income for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $9.3 million to $31.6 million,
primarily due to:
s  higher short term interest rates on cash investments; and
»  Mark-to-Market Adjustment (refer to Natural Gas Purchase Contracts and Associated Power Generation
Revenue Contract Liability section).

Income taxes for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $8.4 million to $12.4 million, primarily due
to:
s 5164 million Part VI.] Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section); and
s H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessmentl section).

This decrease was partially offset by:
e  higher earnings; and
e  $11.8 million adjustment in 2006 1o reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).

Income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $6.3 million to $81.8 million, primarily due to:
s higher eamnings; and
e $11.8 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).

This increase was partially offset by:
o $164 millon Part VI.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends section); and
¢ H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).




Segmented Information

Segmented revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, were as follows:

For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006
(unaudited}
UBHTES ..ottt s e e s r e sreeeene 270.7 246.3 6154 575.0
POWer GENETAtION ..........eoeviiiieciicieeee e sttt srassras s annees 175.6 180.5 381.5 370.3
Global ENETPIISES vvvvecemreemeeecereses s e s se e e em e reeae s 148.1 173.2 330.0 3273
Corporate and Other ... 34 3.1 6.7 6.1
Intersegment eliMINATIONS. .....ococeiaieiirieerse e e s e s smesresesnesesssnsnnes (37.5) (39.7) (75.7 (73.3)
TOMAL ..ot cbeevre e ssn b e bassbe e abbeene e e ansrneas 560.3 563.4 1,257.9 1,205.4

Segmented earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three and six months ended June 30,
2007, were as follows:

For the Three For the Six
Meonths Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
($ Millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006
(unaudited)
UIBIIEIES 1rvureeeieesiseesssessrnrrarrnneesstresneessbeesnessmbeeeamaeeeaeesesasesesee s ameeenneas 28.3 17.9 1.4 58.3
POWer GENETALION ...vecveievie e ceeeeeeeneete e ieereassanestesaes s ebe e sesasteeanerenanes 27.2 256 70.6 53.0
Global ENterpriSes ..ot et e na s 18.6 28.6 61.4 516
Corporate and Other ... 7.8 0.4) 3.0 (2.9)
Intersegment eliMiNations. ...t (0.8) (1.5) (1.6) {2.9)
TOMAL .ottt ctvectvee e ataeeraeasaeesaesberaneenrerreereenreenreearenneeanens 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $24.4 million
to $270.7 million, primarily due to:
e impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
s colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
e  higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

This increase was partially offset by:

s impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision
recorded in the second quarter of 2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Temperatures in ATCO Gas for the three months ended June 30, 2007, were 5.5% colder than normal, compared to
25.7% warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2006.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $40.4 miilion 10 $615.4 nullion, primarily due to:
¢ impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December
2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and
s colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas.

This increase was partially offset by:
s impact of one-time customer rate adjustments approved by the AEUB in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision
recorded in the second quarter of 2006 (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).




Temperatures in ATCO Gas for the six months ended June 30, 2007, were 2.9% warmer than normal, compared to
10.7% warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2006.

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $10.4 million to $28.3 million, and by
$19.1 million to $77.4 million, respectively, primarily due to:
¢ colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
e $54.4 million Part VI.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends
section).

This increase was partially offset by:
s higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008
customer rates (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section);
* higher operating and maintenance expenses and depreciation expenses in ATCO Gas due to customer
growth and increased capital expenditures; and
e  $1.9 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect tax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).

Utilities Business Group capital expenditures to maintain capacity and meet planned growth are expected to be
approximately $600 million in 2007. The total three year (2007-2009) anticipated capital expenditures in the
Utilities Business Group are expecled to be approximately $2.1 billion.

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $4.9
million to $175.6 million, primarily due to:
s lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s U K. operations.

This decrease was partially offset by:
s increased availability due to timing of outages in 2006 in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations;
e impact of higher U.K. exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s
U.K operations; and
¢ higher revenues in ATCO Power’s Australian operations due to higher power prices.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $11.2 million to $381.5 million, primarily due to:
s impact of higher UK. exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s
U.K operations;
s higher revenues in ATCO Power’s Auslralian operations due to higher power prices; and
e increased availability due to liming of outages in 2006 in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.

This increase was partially offset by:
e lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations,

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $1.6 million to $27.2 million, and by
$17.6 million to $70.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:
e H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section);
and
s improved merchant performance, increased availability due to the timing of outages in 2006, and higher
exchange rates on conversion of earnings to Canadian dollars in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ $7.2 million adjustment in 2006 to reflect lax changes (refer to 2006 Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section).




Impacting Alberta Power (2000)’s revenues and earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, were
lower Power Purchase Arrangement (“PPA”) tariffs due to declining rate bases at the Battle River and Sheerness
generating plants and a decline in the return on common equity rate (2007 — 8.65%, 2006 — 8.75%). These return on
common equity rates are based on long term Government of Canada bond yields plus 4.5%.

Alberta Power Pool Electricity Prices

Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal cost of
preducing electricity from natural gas. These spark spreads are based on an approximate industry heat rate of 7.5
gigajoules per megawalt hour.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 406 megawatts of plant capacity owned in Alberta by
ATCO Power and Alberta Power (2000) out of a lotal Alberta owned capacity of approximately 1,709 megawalts
and a worldwide owned capacity of approximately 2,474 megawatts.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $49.87 per megawatt hour,
compared to average prices of $53.61 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006, Natural gas prices
for the three months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $6.73 per gigajoule, compared to average prices of $5.68 per
gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2006, The consequence of these electricity and natural gas prices was an
average spark spread of $(0.62) per megawatt hour for the three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $10.99
per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006,

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the six months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $56.58 per megawatt hour,
compared to average prices of $55.23 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006. Natural gas prices
for the six months ended June 30, 2007, averaged $6.87 per gigajoule, compared to average prices of $6.41 per
gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2006. The consequence of these electricity and natural gas prices was an
average spark spread of $5.07 per megawatt hour for the six months ended June 30, 2007, compared to $7.17 per
megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2006.

Deferred Availability Incentives

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $3.6 million to $42.6 million. The decrease was due to planned outages and the quarterly amortization
of deferred availability incentives. During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the amortization of deferred
availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.4 million to $3.0 million, compared to the same period
in 2006.

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
increased by $3.0 million to $42.6 million, The increase was due to additional availability incentives received for
improved plant availability net of quarterly amortization and planned outages. During the six months ended June
30, 2007, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.6 miilion to $5.9
million, compared to the same period in 2006.

Recent Developments

The Piikani Nation of Brockett, Alberta, exercised their option, on July 1, 2007, to purchase a 25% interest in ATCO
Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 32 megawatl hydroelectric generating plant at the Oldman River dam near Pincher
Creek, Alberta.

On May 10, 2007, ATCO Power announced that it will construct a 45 megawatt natural gas-fired unit for its
Valleyview generating plant in Valleyview, Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the unit will be sold to the
Alberta Power Pool. Construction of the unit is scheduled for completion in 2008.

Alberta Power (2000) operated the Rainbow generating plant during 2006 and the electricity generated was sold to
the Alberta Power Pool. Alberta Power (2000) had one year after the expiry of the PPA for the Rainbow generating
plant (December 31, 2005) to determine whether to decommission the plant in order to fully recover plant
decomimissioning costs or to continue to operate the plant. In the first quarter of 2007 the Alberta Electric System
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Operator (“AESO”) and Alberta Power (2000) executed a contract resulting in Alberta Power (2000) continuing to
operate the plant and thus be responsible for future decommissioning costs. These costs are included in Alberta
Power {2000)’s asset retirement obligation liability.

Global Enterprises

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by
$25.1 million to $148.1 million, primarily due to:
¢ lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and reseld on a “no-margin”
basis, lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction, and the timing and demand of
natural pas storage capacity sold and lower storage fees in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks —
Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO Midstream section).

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $2.7 million to $330.0 million, primarily due to:
e the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
{refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO Midstream section).

This increase was partially offset by:
e lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no-margin”
basis and lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction in ATCO Midstream.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased by $10.0 million to $18.6 million, primarily due to:
o the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold, lower storage fees and lower volumes and
margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations — ATCO
Midstream section).

Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $9.8 million to $61.4 million, primarily due to:
s the timing and demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream
(refer to Business Risks — Non-Regulated Operations - ATCO Midstream section).

This increase was partially offset by:

s lower volumes and margins for NGL in ATCO Midstream (refer {o Business Risks — Non-Regulated
Operations — ATCO Midsiream section).




ATCO Midstream

ATCO Midstream provides natural gas producers gathering, processing and liquids extraction services and natural
gas storage.

The difference between natural gas cost and the NGL’'s value on a heat content equivalent basis is commonly
referred to as the frac spread. ATCO Midstream’s frac spreads can vary with fluctuations in the natural gas and
NGL pricing. Frac spreads can be volatile, as shown in the following graph, which illustrates monthly frac spreads
during the period of January 2003 to June 2007.

Frac Spread
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The above table represents measurements of frac spreads as reported by an independent consultant and does not
necessarily represent the frac spreads received by ATCO Midstream.

Fluctuations in frac spreads may have a significant impact on ATCO Midstream’s earnings and cash flow from
operations in the future. A $1.00 change in the average annual frac spread may impact annual earnings by as much
as $7 million. Total capacity of ATCO Midstream’s NGL plants is 411 million cubic feet per day.

The majority of ATCO Midsiream’s natural gas storage revenues comes from seasonal differences (summer/winter)
in the price of natural gas. Recognition of ATCO Midstream’s revenues is determined through the terms of the
contractual arrangements.
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Summer/winter natural gas storage differential can be very volatile, as shown in the following graph, which
illustrates a range of differentials experienced during the storage periods from 2003-2004 to 2007-2008.

Net Summer/Winter Differential
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ATCO Frontec

In June 2007, the Corporation was awarded five NATO support contracts at the Kandahar Airfield in Afghanistan
for up to five years. Specific sectors of responsibility will include fire and crash rescue, visiting aircraft cross-
servicing services, roads and grounds maintenance, facility maintenance, construction, engineering, equipment and
vehicle maintenance, aircraft movement control and terminal transport, accommodation services, supply operations,
aitfield mechanical transport, delivery of potable water, sewage management, and waste management and disposal.

In June 2007, UQSUQ Corporation, a joint venture between ATCO Frontec and Nunavut Petroleum, was awarded a
five year contract renewal to lease and operate the 79 million litre buik fuel storage facility, the pipeline distribution
system and the municipal fuel distribution system in Igaluit, Nunavut.

Corporate and Other

Earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $8.2 million to $7.8 million, and by $10.9
million to $8.0 million, respectively, primarily due to:
+  $9.2 million Part VI.1 Tax Adjustment (refer to 2007 Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends
section); and
e higher short term interest rates on cash investments.

This increase was partially offset by:
» increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share and
ATCO Lid. Class I Non-Voting share prices since December 31, 2006.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation’s wholly owned subsidiary,
CU Inc.:
s ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries Northland Utilities {NWT), Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and
Y ukon Electrical;
® the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.; and
s the Battle River and Sheerness generating plants of Alberta Power (2000).
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Regulated operations in Alberta (except for the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000)} are subject to a generic
cost of capital regime:

e in July 2004, the AEUB issued the generic cost of capital decision which established, among other things:

o a standardized approach for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of
return on commeon equity;
= rate of return adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term Government of Canada bond
yield as forecast; and
= adjustment mechanism similar to the method the Nationa! Energy Board uses in determining its
formula based rate of return;
o the capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB; and

» in November 2005, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006;

s in January 2006, the AEUB clarified that the generic return on equity determined on an annual basis in
accordance with the generic cost of capital decision should apply to each year of the test period in the
companies’ applications. If no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then there will be no
adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year; and

e in November 2006, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.51% for 2007.

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCQ Pipelines purchase information technology services, and ATCO Electric and
ATCO Gas also purchase customer care and billing services, from ATCO 1-Tek. The recovery of these costs in
customer rates is subject to AEUB approval. Since 2003, the costs have been approved on a placeholder basis, and
are subject to final AEUB approval after completion of the collaborative benchmarking process.

ATCO Electric

In March 2006, the AEUB issued a decision on ATCO Electric’s 2005 and 2006 General Tariff Application
(“ATCO Electric GTA Decision™);

» which established, among other things, the amount of revenue to be collected in 2005 and 2006 from
customers for transmission and distribution services and approved a return on common equity as
determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return methodology — 9.5% in 2005 and 8.93% in 2006;

» ATCO Electric’s 2005 earnings were negatively impacted by $1.3 million, recorded in first quarter of 2006;
and

* ATCO Electric’s 2006 earnings were reduced by an additional $1.6 million, compared to 2005 earnings,
recorded throughout 2006.

In August 2006, the AEUB approved the AESO application for the need to improve transmission infrastructure in
northwest Alberta:
» AEUB decision grants the AESO approval to assign to the Transmission Facility Owner, ATCO Electric,
work consisting of several distinet projects which will result in 725 kilometres of new transmission line to
be constructed by 2011
o in June 2007, the first of these distinct projects was assigned to ATCO Electric by the AESO, This
project consists of a 235 kilometre transmission line with an estimated cost of $210 million, and is
anticipated to be completed by 2010. ATCO Electric has applied to the AEUB for approval to build
and operate this project; and
o as a result of price escalation caused by the change in completion date of the remaining distinct
projects (post 2010), coupled with the increasing costs of construction in Alberta, ATCO Electric is
unable, at this time, to estimate the cost of the entire project; and
* ATCO Electric anticipates that an additional 180 kilometres of transmission line projects will be required in
its service area over the next five years,

In November 2006, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2007 and 2008 test
years:
s requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta;
» adecision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until late 2007;
* in November 2006, ATCO Electric filed an application requesting interim refundable rates for transmission
and distribution operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff application; and




e on December 19, 2006, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving interim refundable
rate increases amounting to 50% of ATCO Electric’s requested increases for transmission and distribution
operations,

ATCO Gas

In January 2006, the AEUB issued a decision on ATCO Gas’ 2005, 2006 and 2007 General Rate Application
(“ATCO Gas GRA Decision™):

o which, among other things, established the amount of revenue to be collected over the period 2005 to 2007
from customers for natural gas distribution service and approved a return on common equity as determined
by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return methodology — 9.5% in 2005, 8.93% in 2006 and 8.51% in
2007.

In May 2006, the City of Calgary filed a Review and Variance application with the AEUB for the ATCO Gas GRA
Deciston:
e the application alleges that the AEUB made errors in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision related to the
calculation of working capital needed by ATCO Gas to operate its Carbon natural gas storage facility;
¢ the AEUB issued its decision on January 17, 2007, denying the City of Calgary’s application; and
e on February 15, 2007, the City of Calgary filed for leave to appeal this decision with the Alberta Court of
Appeal. The appeal was heard on June 19, 2007.

In October 2006, ATCO Gas also filed a Review and Variance application with the AEUB for the ATCO Gas GRA
Decision:
o the application alleges that the AEUB made errors in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision related to the
approved level of administrative expenses;
s in December 2006, the AEUB issued a decision in which it acknowledged an error for a portion of the
administralive expenses in question;
s on April 18, 2007, ATCO Gas was advised by the AEUB that it would grant ATCO Gas’ request to hear its
Review and Variance application. A schedule for the hearing has not yet been determined; and
e on May 30, 2007, the AEUB issued a written process to be completed by September 5, 2007. A final
AEUB decision 1s not expected until the fourth quarter of 2007.

ATCO Gas owns a 43.5 petajoule natural gas storage facility located at Carbon, Alberta. ATCO Gas has leased the
entire storage capacity of the facility to ATCO Midstream. ATCO Gas has taken the position that the facility is no
longer required for utility service and should be removed from regulation. In the process of obtaining AEUB
approval, the following events are significant:

¢ in July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the
facility;

¢ in June 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition to addressing other
matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the autherity, when necessary in the public interest, to direct
a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility;

ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal;

in October 2005, the AEUB established processes to review the use of the facility for utility purposes;

a hearing to review the use of the facility for revenue generation was held in April 2006 and a hearing to
review the use of the facility for load balancing was held in June 2006. On October 11, 2006, the AEUB
1ssued a decision confirming ATCO Gas’ position that the facility is no longer required for utility service
with respect to the use of the facility for load balancing purposes. The City of Calgary has filed a leave to
appeal and a Review and Variance application of this decision;

s on February 5, 2007, the AEUB issued a decision in which it determined that a legitimate utility use for the
facility is that it be used for purposes of generating revenues to offset customer rates. This decision
requires ATCO Gas to maintain the status quo with respect to the use of the Carbon facility including the
lease of the entire storage facility to ATCO Midstream. On February 26, 2007, ATCO Gas filed for leave
10 appeal this decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal {refer to Business Risks — Regulated Operations —
Carbon Natural Gas Storage Facility section); and

o the Alberta Court of Appeal has set a hearing to address the ATCO Gas leave to appeal with respect to the
Carbon storage facility for September 18, 2007.




ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances (the process whereby third party natural gas supplies are reconciled to amounts actually
shipped in the Corporation’s pipelines) that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account:

e in April 2005, the AEUB issued a decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance
adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The decision resulted in a decrease to ATCO Gas’ 2005 revenues and
earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively; and

s the City of Calgary filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas filed a cross appeal of the
AEUB’s decision. The leave to appeal was heard by the Alberta Court of Appeal on April 18, 2006. On
July 7, 2006, the Alberta Court of Appeal issued its decision granting the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal
on the question of whether the AEUB erred in law or jurisdiction in assuming that it had the authority to
allow recovery in 2005, for costs relating to prior years. ATCO Gas’ cross appeal was denied. At a
hearing on April 13, 2007, the Alberta Court of Appeal declined to consider the City of Calgary’s appeal
and referred the jurisdictional question back to the AEUB,

ATCO Pipelines

In March 2007, the AEUB directed ATCO Pipelines to file its next General Rate Application by October 1, 2007.
ATCO Pipelines anticipates that the filing will include the 2008 and 2009 test years:
» requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta; and
* adecision from the AEUB on the General Rate Application is not expected until the third quarter of 2008.

The AEUB has refocused attention to its review of the competitive natural gas pipeline issues under AEUB
jurisdiction. This review is expected to address competitive issues between ATCO Pipelines and NOVA Gas
Transmission Ltd. The AEUB will distribute the final issues list by July 31, 2007, and a process schedule to address
these issues by August 28, 2007.

Other Matters

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for
which decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Funds generated by operations provide a substantial portion of the Corporation’s cash requirements. Additional
cash requirements are met extemally through bank borrowings and the issuance of long term and non-recourse long
term debt and preferred shares, Commercial paper borrowings and short term bank loans are used to provide
flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing.

Funds generated by operations for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $27.2 million to $163.3
million, primarily due to:
s increased earnings.

Funds generated by operations for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $53.7 million to $395.5
million, primarily due to:
e increased earnings.

This increase was partially offset by:
s 2006 proceeds received from the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section).

Investing for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $32.8 million to $144.2 million, and by
$53.5 million to $268.6 million, respectively, primarily due to:

» higher capital expenditures;

s changes in non-current deferred electricity costs; and

e changes in non-cash working capital.




This increase was partially offset by:
» H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006 (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

Purchase of property, plant and equipment for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $19.6
million to $148.1 million, and by $31.1 million to $271.8 million, respectively, primarily due to:
» increased investment in regulated electric distribution and transmission projects and regulated natural gas
distribution projects.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation issued:
s no long term debt.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation redeemed:
* 1o long term debt; and
¢  366.1 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $66.1 million

During the six months ended June 30, 2047, the Corporation issued:
* o long term debt.

During the six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation redeemed:
e no long term debt; and
e  391.2 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $91.2 million.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation issued:
¢ $115.0 million of equity preferred shares.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the Corporation redeemed:
¢  §$126.5 miliion of equity preferred shares.

These changes resulted in a net equity preferred share decrease of $11.5 million.

Net purchase of Class A shares for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased by $28.2 million, and
by $28.8 million, respectively, primarily due to:
s higher share purchases in 2006.

Foreign currency translation for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, negatively impacted the
Corporation’s cash position by $10.5 million, and by 8! 1.7 million, respectively, primarily due to:
s changes in U.K. and Australian exchange rates.

On April 18, 2007, CU Inc., a subsidiary corporation, issued $115.0 million Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares Series 1 at a price of $25.00 per share for cash. The dividend rate was fixed at 4.60%. The net proceeds of
the issue were used in part to redeem, on May 18, 2007, $91.8 million of the outstanding Cumulative Redeemable
Second Preferred Shares Series Q, R and S of ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines, subsidiary
corporations of CU Inc., that were held by the Corporation. '

On May 18, 2007, the Corporation redeemed all of the $126.5 million of outstanding Cumulative Redeemable
Second Preferred Shares Series Q, R and S at a price of $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends per
share.




At June 30, 2007, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for general corporate
purposes.

Total Used Available
($ Millions)
Long term committed .......ocooriiiiii s 326.0 43.9 277.1
Short term COmMMIIE ..........ooooiiie et sas s 600.0 10.0 590.0
UNCOMIMIUEE 1.ttt cteeenirririreeeeie et e eieeeieeeceeeeeesieeeeaeeaseeeereracanseeesneesniees 74.1 11.0 63.1
TOUAL ..ot eeeeeb e sttt eteeetevere e teeatsearseasseasatesseessesneereenseenseenrenns 1,000.1 69.9 930.2

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Contractual obligations disclosed in the 2006 MD&A remain substantially unchanged as at June 30, 2007.

Net current and long term future income tax liabilities of $197.0 million at June 30, 2007, are attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 23, 2006, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 5% of the
outstanding Class A shares. The bid expired on May 22, 2007. Over the life of the bid 1,679,700 shares were
purchased, all of which were purchased in 2006. On May 23, 2007, the Corporation commenced a new normal
course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 5% of the outstanding Class A shares. The bid will expire on May 22,
2008. From May 23, 2007, to July 24, 2007, no shares have been purchased to date.

For the first quarter of 2007, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class A and Class B shares was
increased by $0.015 to $0.305 per share. For the second quarter of 2007, the quarterly dividend on the
Corporation’s Class A and Class B shares was increased by $0.01 to $30.315 per share. The Corporation has
increased its annual common share dividend each year since its inception as a holding company in 1972. The
payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the
Corporation and other factors.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At July 24, 2007, the Corporation had outstanding 81,607,324 Class A shares, 43,826,346 Class B shares and
options to purchase 1,323,000 Class A shares.

BUSINESS RISKS
Environmental Matters

On April 26, 2007 the federal government released a plan that proposes mandatory greenhouse gas (“GHG™)
emission targets on industry. The proposed plan requires an initial reduction in 2010 of 18% from 2006 levels
followed thereafter by annual reductions of an additional 2%. New facilities (2004 or later) are allowed a 3 year
grace period after which they must improve emission intensity by 2% per year below the clean fuel standard.
Compliance may be achieved by reduction or capture, limited investment in a technology fund, emission credit
trading, purchase of offset credits, Kyofo Protoco! Clean Development Mechanisms {maximum 10%) and early
action credits. Specific details on the regulations have yet to be released and will be required to assess the financial
impact of the federal framework. While it is not certain, it is anticipated that the PPAs will allow the Corporation to
recover most of the costs associated with complying with the new regulations.




In March 2007, the Government of Alberta introduced legislation (Bill 3, Climate Change and Emissions
Management Amendment Act and the Specified Gas Emitters Regulation Amendment) that will require Alberta
facilities that emit 100,000 tonnes or more of GHG to reduce facility emission intensities by 12% starting July 1,
2007. Units commissioned before January 1, 2004, or that have less than nine years of commercial operation are
required to reduce their emission intensity by 2% per year starting in the fourth year of commercial operation to a
maximum of 12% in the ninth year of commercial operation. The current framework has proposed that cogeneration
units with emissions less than a deemed emission target based on a stand-alone natural gas combined cycle unit and
conventional boiler will be eligible for credits. Specific details on the regulations have yet to be finalized and will
be required 1o assess the financial impact of the provincial framework. While it is not certain, 1t is anticipated that
the PPAs will allow the Corporation to recover most of the cosls associated with complying with the new
regulations.

Alberta Environment implemented a mercury emission regulation in March 2006. The regulation requires coal-fired
plant operators, including Alberta Power (2000), to monitor mercury emissions and capture at least 70% of the
mercury in the coal starting January 1, 2011. While it is not certain, il is anticipated that the PPAs will allow the
Corporation to recover most of the costs associated with complying with the new regulation.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCQ Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area. The
AEUB may approve interim rates or approve the recovery of costs, including capital and operating costs, on a
placeholder basis, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks faced by
companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit a
reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Carbon Natural Gas Storage Facility

ATCO Gas leases the entire storage capacity of the Carbon natural gas storage facility to ATCO Midstream at
AEUB approved placeholder rates. On February 5, 2007, the AEUB issued a decision to ATCO Gas that leaves in
question these placeholder rates and the effect that these placeholder rates will have on future ATCO Gas revenues
{refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Weather

Weather fluctuations have a significant impact on throughput in ATCO Gas. Since approximately 50% of ATCO
Gas’ delivery charge is recovered based on throughput, ATCO Gas’ revenues and earnings are sensitive to weather.
Weather that is 10% warmer or colder than normal temperatures impacts annual eamings by approximately
$10.0 million.

ATCO 1-Tek Services

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines purchase information technology services, and ATCO Electric and
ATCO Gas also purchase customer care and billing services, from ATCO [-Tek. The recovery of these costs in
customer rates is subject to AEUB approval. Since 2003, the costs have been approved on a placeholder basis, and
are subject to final AEUB approval after completion of the collaborative benchmarking process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of Centrica plc.

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural pas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply




natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO [-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

The Corporation has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations to DEML contemplated under the transaction agreements.

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills

As a result of decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition of late
payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at this time
the impact, if any, that these decisions wili have on the Corporation.

Alberta Power (2000)

Included in regulated operations are the Battle River and Sheerness generating plants of Alberta Power {2000),
which were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now govemned by legislatively mandated
PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the
PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their
forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become
deregulated upon the earlier of one year afler the expiry of a PPA or a decision 1o continue to operate the plant.
Alberta Power (2000) has one year after the expiry of a PPA to determine whether to decommission the generating
plant in order to fully recover plant decommissioning costs or to continue to operate the plant. Each PPA is to
remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant or December 31,
2020.

Substantially all the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s. Under the PPA’s,
Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating unit available to the purchaser
of the PPA for that unit. In reiurn, Alberta Power (2000) is entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs
for that unit from the PPA purchaser, including a return on common equity equal to the long term Government of
Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equily ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be
determined by indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual
results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s were based.

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit
availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of
predetermined largets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the availabifity
targets are nol achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimaled future incentives exceed accumulaled penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shorifall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

At June 30, 2007, the Corporation had recorded $42.6 million of deferred availability incentives.

Fuel costs in Alberta Power (2000) are mostly for coal supply. To protect against volatility in coal prices, Alberta
Power (2000) owns or has sufficient coal supplies under long term contracts for the anticipated lives of its Battle
River and Sheerness coal-fired generating plants. These contracts are at prices that are either fixed or indexed to
inflation.




Measurement Inaccuracies in Metering Facilities

Measurement inaccuracies occur from time to time with respect to ATCO Electric’s, ATCO Gas’ and ATCO
Pipelines’ metering facilitiecs. Measurement adjustments are settled between the parties based on the requirements
of the Electricity and Gas Inspections Act (Canada) and applicable regulations issued pursuant thereto. There is a

risk of disallowance of the recovery of a measurement adjustment if controls and timely follow up are found to be
inadequate by the AEUB.

A recent AEUB decision applicable to ATCQO Gas established a two year adjusiment limitation period for
inaccuracies in gas supply costs, including measurement inaccuracies in metering facilities. The AEUB stated that it
will consider specific applications for adjustments beyond the two year limitation period.

Non-Regulated Operations

ATCO Power

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in
the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period December 2002 to June 2007,

Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments.

Since October 2004, the output from ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant previously sold to TXU Europe (refer
to TXU Europe Settlement section) has been sold into the U.K. power exchange market. In the UK., electricity
generators, on average, sell over 90% of their output to electricity suppliers in bilateral contracts, use power
exchanges for approximately 7% of their output, and sell the remaining 2-3% via the Balancing Mechanism.
Approximately 40% of the electricity generated is supplied from natural gas-fired generating plants, and in 2006 the
market experienced an increase in electricity prices due to the increased world prices for natural gas. Since then,
natural gas prices have sofiened with additional natural gas infrastructure coming on stream and the slightly lower
oil prices. Nevertheless, the Barking generating plant has a long term, fixed price gas purchase agreement and, as a
result, has been able to experience increased margins due to the high market prices for electricity. Changes in the
U.K, market electricity prices may have an impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in
the future.

ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditions may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations (refer to Results of Operations —
Consolidated Operations section).

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other NGL from natural gas streams at its extraction plants. These products
are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or markel based amrangements. Changes in market
conditions may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from NGL extraction operations.

ATCO Frontec

ATCO Frontec’s operations include providing support to military agencies in foreign locations which may be
subject to political risk.

A fuel spill occurred in January 2007 at the Brevoort Island, Northwest Territories radar site maintained by Nasittuq
Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation. The
Corporation believes that it has sufficient insurance coverage in place to cover any material amounts that might
become payable as a result of the fuel spill. Accordingly, this spill is not expected to have any material impact on
the financial position of the Corporation.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the vear, On an on-going basis, management reviews iis
estimates, particularly those related to depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-
lived assets, amortization of deferred availability incentives, asset retirement obligations and employee future
benefits, using currently available information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates,
and actual results could differ from those estimates. The Corporation’s critical accounting estimates are discussed
below.

Deferred Availability Incentives

Alberta Power (2000) is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit availability. As at June 30,
2007, the Corporation had recorded $42.6 million of deferred availability incentives. For the three and six months
ended June 30, 2007, the amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in revenues, amounted
to 53.0 million and $5.9 million, respectively.

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future electricity
prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the Corporation uses these estimates to forecast high case, low case
and most likely scenarios for the incentives to be received from, less penalties to be paid to, the PPA counterparties.
These forecasts are added to the accumulated unamortized deferred availability incentives outstanding at the end of
the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the remaining term of the PPA to arrive at the amortization for the
Quarter.

Compared to the most likely scenario recorded in revenues for the year to date, the high case scenario would have
resulted in higher revenues of approximately $2.4 million, whereas the low case scenario would have resulted in
lower revenues of approximately $2.3 million.

Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assels is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate plus an equily and management premium that reflects the plan asset mix, Actual
balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1.5%, which, when added to the
long bend vield rate of 5.1% at the beginning of 2007, resulted in an expected long term rate of return of 6.6% for
2007. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return assumptions for the
Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal equity risk premiums,
and asset diversification effecl on porifolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past five years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.1% in the year ended December 31, 2006; the rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, was
increased to 6.6%. The result has been a decrease in the expected return on plan assets and a corresponding increase
in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan assets over the same period has been lower than
expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also contributing 1o an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses
are amorlized lo earnings.

The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects markel interest rates on
high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount
rale has also declined over the same period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.1% at the end of 2006; the rate has
remained at 5.1% in the three and six months ended June 30, 2007. The result has been an increase in benefit
obligations (i.e., an experience loss), which is contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are
amortized to earnings.




In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amorlize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued this
amortization during the three and six months ended June 30, 2007.

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, are as follows: for drug costs, 7.8% starting in
2007 grading down over six years to 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2007 and thereafter.
Combined with lower recent claims experience, the effect of these changes has been to decrease the costs of other
post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of
employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants

(“CICA™) recommendations pertaining to financial instruments, which establish standards for the recognition,

measurement, disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives.

These recommendations require that fair value be used to measure financial assets that are held for trading or

available for sale, financial liabilities that are held for trading and all derivative financial instruments. Other

financial assets, such as loans and receivables and investments that are held to maturity, and other financial
liabilities are measured at their camrying value. This change in accounting had the following effect on the

consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007:

(a) Recognition of interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and certain natural gas purchase contracts
as derivative assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements (refer to Note 10 to the unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2007).

(b) Recognition of the fair value of a power generation revenue contract liability associated with the natural gas
purchase contracts derivative asset (refer to Note 10 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
for the six months ended June 30, 2007).

{c) Recognition of a mark-to-market adjustment for the change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts
derivative asset and recognition of an adjustment to the associated power generation revenue contract liability
(refer to Note 6 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June 30,
2007).

(d) Restatement of opening retained earnings at January 1, 2007, to recognize the prior years® earnings effect of the
natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset and the associated power generation revenue contract liability, as
well as the prior years’ earnings effect of accounting for certain financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost using the effective interest method (refer to Note 5 to the unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2007).

(e) Reclassification of deferred financing charges from other assets to long term debt and non-recourse long term
debt (refer to Note 7 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June
30, 2007).

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendalions pertaining to hedges,
which establish standards for the identification, designation, documentation and effectiveness of hedging
relationships for the purpose of applying hedge accounting. The purpose of hedge accounting is to ensure that gains,
losses, revenues and expenses from effective hedging relationships are recorded in earnings in the same period. This
change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June
30, 2007.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
reporting and disclosure of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income consists of changes in the equity of the
Corporation from sources other than the Corporation’s share owners, and includes earnings of the Corporation, the
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foreign currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining foreign operations and unrealized gains and losses
on changes in fair values of available-for-sale assets and effective cash flow hedging instruments. Other
comprehensive income comprises revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are recognized in comprehensive income
but are excluded from eamings of the period. Comprehensive income is disclosed in a separate statement in the
consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
presentation of equity and changes in equity. These recommendations require separate presentation of the
components of equity, including retained eamings, accumulated other comprehensive income, contributed surplus,
share capital and reserves, and the changes therein. As a result of this change in accounting, the Corporation has
included a reconciliation of accumulated other comprehensive income in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements {refer to Note 11 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June
30, 2007). In accordance with the recommendations, comparative figures have been adjusted to incorporate the
foreign currency translation adjustment into accumulated other comprehensive income.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation adopted the CICA recommendations that prescribe the criteria for
changing accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment and disclosure of changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and corrections of errors. Adoption of these recommendations had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, except for the
disclosure of accounting changes that have been issued by the CICA but have not yet been adopted by the
Corporation because they are not effective until a future date (refer to Future Accounting Changes below).

Future Accounting Changes

The CICA has issued new accounting recommendations for capital disclosures which require disclosure of both
qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements 1o evaluate the Corporation’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation
beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for disclosure and presentation of financial instruments
which require disclosures of both qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements
1o evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the Corporation is exposed.
These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for measurement and disclosure of inventories which
provide guidance on the determination of cost and ils subsequent recognition as an expense, including any
writedown to net realizable value, and on the cost formulas that are used to assign costs to inventories. The
Corporation is unable to determine at this time the effect of adopting these recommendations on earnings or assets of
the Corporation. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.

July 25, 2007
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006

{Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Revenues $ 560.3 3 563.4 $1,257.9 $1,205.4
Costs and expenses
Natural gas supply 6.2 10.3 9.3 15.0
Purchased power 11.4 10.6 25.2 236
Operation and maintenance 230.3 2324 470.9 468.5
Selling and administrative 49.7 43.0 92.1 86.9
Depreciation and amortization 83.3 91.9 175.2 179.6
Interest 4 42.9 48.8 85.5 89.7
Interest on non-recourse long term debt 10.8 11.9 228 24.3
Franchise fees 34.7 27.7 93.2 89.6
469.3 476.6 974.2 977.2
91.0 86.8 283.7 228.2
Interest and other income 6 11.4 13.2 31.6 223
Earnings before income taxes 102.4 100.0 3153 250.5
Income taxes 4 12.4 20.8 §1.8 75.5
90.0 79.2 2335 175.0
Dividends on equity preferred shares 8.9 9.0 17.7 17.9
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares 81.1 70.2 215.8 157.1
Retained earnings at beginning of period as restated 5 1,909.8 1,771.8 1,813.3 1,721.9
1,990.9 1,842.0 2,029.1 1,876.0
Dividends on Class A and Class B shares 39.5 362 77.7 724
Purchase of Class A shares - 25.5 - 263
Retained earnings at end of period $1,951.4 $1,780.3 $1,951.4 $1,780.3
Earnings per Ctass A and Class B share 9 $ 0.65 } 056 $ 172 $ 1.24
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share 9 $ 0.64 § 055 § 171 $ 1.23
Dividends paid per Class A and Class B share 9 $ 0315 $ 0.285 $ 0.62 $ 057
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

June 30 December 31
Note 2007 2006 2006
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term investments 3 $ 813.¢ $ 904.0 $ 79838
Accounts receivable 292.8 251.1 3623
Inventories 88.6 80.7 96.5
Future income taxes 3.0 0.3 -
Regulatory assets 6.5 14.8 133
Derivative assets 10 0.5 - -
Prepaid expenses 30.8 23.0 23.6
1,235.2 1,273.9 1,294.5
Property, plant and equipment 5,481.6 5,255.8 5,426.1
Regulatory assets 47.3 29.2 43.2
Derivative assets 10 6%.7 - -
Other assets 197.7 244.0 229.7
$7,031.5 $6,802.9 $6,993.5
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3170 $ 2760 $ 3388
Income taxes payable 4 19.1 522 227
Future income taxes - - 0.3
Regulatory liabilities 11.5 4.5 0.5
Derivative liabilities 10 1.0 - -
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 7 68.9 533 59.3
417.5 386.0 421.6
Future income taxes 4 200.0 168.9 194.7
Regulatory liabilities 143.0 160.7 148.8
Derivative liabilities 10 1.8 - -
Deferred credits 10 278.2 251.9 229.0
Long term debt 7 2,399.3 2,266.5 2.411.5
Non-recourse long term debt 7 510.5 650.1 626.7
Equity preferred shares 8 625.0 636.5 636.5
Class A and Class B share owners' equity
Class A and Class B shares 9 517.2 517.8 516.0
Contributed surplus 1.6 0.9 1.2
Retained earnings 1,951.4 1,780.3 1,804.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income 11 {14.0) (16.7) 3.1
2,456.2 2,282.3 2,324.7

$7,031.5 $6,802.9 36,993.5




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Operating activities
Eamings attributable to Class A and Class B shares $ 81.1 § 702 52158 $157.1
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amertization 833 91.9 175.2 179.6

Future income taxes 2.1} (19.8) 0.6 (16.9)

Deferred availability incentives (3.6} (3.8) 3.0 8.6

TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 3 2.9) (5.3) (5.9) 53

Qther 7.5 2.9 6.8 8.1
Funds generated by operations 163.3 136.1 395.5 341.8
Changes in non-cash working capital (15.2) 13.0 79.0 46.0
Cash flow from operations 148.1 149.1 474.5 387.8
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (148.1) (128.5) (271.8) (240.7)
Costs on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3.3 (2.5) (3.8) 2.7
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to

plant 16.9 15.1 36.7 40.8
Non-current deferred electricity costs (L.0) 10.1 (2.4) i5.4
Changes in non-cash working capital (1.3) 130 {15.5) (8.3)
Income tax reassessment 4 - (17.0) - {17.0)
Other (7.4) (1.6) {11.8) (2.6)

(144,2) {111.4) (268.6) {215.1)
Financing activities
Issue of long term debt - - - 355
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt 3 (66.1) (10.5) {91.2) (30.3)
[ssue of equity preferred shares by subsidiary & 115.0 - 115.0 -
Redemption of equity preferred shares 8 (126.5) - (126.5) -
Net issue (purchase) of Class A shares 0.6 (27.6) 1.1 27.7)
Dividends paid to Class A and Class B share owners (39.5) (36.2) (7717 (72.4)
QOther (4.3) (0.6) (3.3) (0.8)
(120.8) {74.9) {182.6) (95.7)

Foreign currency translation (8.7) 1.8 (9.1) 2.6
Cash position m
Increase (decrease) (125.6) (35.4) 14,2 79.6
Beginning of period 938.6 939.4 798.8 824.4
End of period $ 813.0 $904.0 $ 813.0 $904.0

'} Cash position consists of cash and short term investments, and includes $129.0 million (2006 - $157.0 million)
which is only available for use in joint ventures (sce Note 3).
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Millions of Canadian Dollars}

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
(Unaucdited} (Unaudited)
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares $81.1 $70.2 3215.8 $157.1
Other comprehensive income, net of income taxes:
Cash flow hedges i1 kN | - 3.6 -
Foreign currency translation adjustment 11 (13.7) 1.5 {13.4) 1.5
(10.6) 1.5 (9.8) 1.5
Comprehensive income $70.5 §71.7 $206.0 £158.6
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007
{Unaudited, Tabular Amounts in Millions of Canadian Dollars)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies
Financial statement presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
related notes included in the Corporation’s 2006 Annual Report. These interim financial statements have been
prepared using the same accounting policies as used in the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2006, except as described below.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants

(*CICA™) recommendations pertaining to financial instruments, which establish standards for the recognition,

measurement, disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives.

These recommendations require that fair value be used to measure financial assets that are held for trading or

available for sale, financial liabilities that are held for trading and all derivative financial instruments. Other

financial assets, such as loans and receivables and investments that are held to maturity, and other financial
liabilities are measured at their carrying value. This change in accounting had the following effect on the

consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007:

{a) Recognition of interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and certain natural gas purchase contracts
as derivative assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements (see Note 10).

{b) Recognition of the fair value of a power generation revenue contract liability associated with the natural gas
purchase contracts derivative asset (see Note 10).

(c) Recognition of a mark-to-market adjustment for the change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts
derivative asset and recognition of an adjustment to the associated power generation revenue contract liability
(see Note 6).

(d) Restatement of opening retained earnings at January 1, 2007 to recognize the prior years’ earnings effect of the
natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset and the associated power generation revenue contract liability, as
well as the prior vears’ earnings effect of accounting for certain financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost using the effective interest method (see Note 5).

(e) Reclassification of deferred financing charges from other assets to long term debt and non-recourse long term
debt {see Note 7).

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to hedges,
which establish standards for the identification, designation, documentation and effectiveness of hedging
relationships for the purpose of applying hedge accounting. The purpose of hedge accounting is to ensure that gains,
losses, revenues and expenses from effective hedging relationships are recorded in earnings in the same period. This
change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2007.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
reporting and disclosure of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income consists of changes in the equity of the
Corporation from sources other than the Corporation’s share owners, and includes earnings of the Corporation, the
foreign currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining foreign operations and unrealized gains and losses
on changes in fair values of available-for-sale assets and effective cash flow hedging instruments. Other
comprehensive income comprises revenues, expenses, gains and losses that are recognized in comprehensive income
but are excluded from earnings of the period. Comprehensive income is disclosed in a separate stalement in the
consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA recommendations regarding the
presentation of equity and changes in equity. These recommendations require separate presentation of the
components of equity, including retained earnings, accumulated other comprehensive income, contributed surplus,
share capital and reserves, and the changes therein. As a result of this change in accounting, the Corporation has




1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

included a reconciliation of accumulated other comprehensive income in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 11). In accordance with the recommendations, comparative figures have been adjusted to
incorporate the foreign currency translation adjustment into accumulated other comprehensive income.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation adopted the CICA recommendations that prescribe the criteria for
changing accounting policies, together with the accounting treatment and disclosure of changes in accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and corrections of errors. Adoption of these recommendations had no
effect on the consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, except for the
disclosure of accounting changes that have been issued by the CICA but have not yet been adopted by the
Corporation because they are not effective until a future date (see Future Accounting Changes below).

Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta, the timing and
demand of natural gas storage capacity sold, changes in natural gas storage fees and the timing of rate decisions, the
consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual basis.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
Cash and Short Term Investments

Short term investmenis consist of certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances with maturities generally of 90
days or less at purchase.

Deferred Financing Charges

Issue costs of long term debt are amortized over the life of the debt using the effective interest method. Issue costs
of preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the expected life of the issue and issue costs
of preferred shares relating to other subsidiaries are charged to retained earnings. Unamortized premiums and issue
costs of redeemed long term debt and preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the life of
the issue funding the redemption. The Corporation’s deferred financing charges pertaining to long term debt have
been reclassified from other assets to long term debt and non-recourse long term debt in accordance with the CICA
recommendations for financial instruments (see Note 7).

Derivative Financial Instruments

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All
such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

CICA recommendations require the recognition and measurement of derivative instruments embedded in host
contracts that were issued, acquired or substantively modified on or after January 1, 2003. Derivative instruments
embedded in host contracts that were issued, acquired or substantively modified prior to January 1, 2003 have not
been identified and recognized in the consolidated financial statements as permitted by the recommendations.

The Corporation designates each derivative instrument as either a hedging instrument or a non-hedge derivative:

(a) A hedging instrument is designated as either:

(i) a fair value hedge of a recognized asset or liability or,
{ii)} a cash flow hedge of either: .

¢ a specific firm commitment or anticipated transaction or,

+ the variable future cash flows arising from a recognized asset or liability.
At inception of a hedge, the Corporation documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, including the method of assessing retrospective and prospective hedge effectiveness. At the end
of each period, the Corporation assesses whether the hedging instrument has been highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item and measures the amount of any hedge ineffectiveness.
The Corporation also assesses whether the hedging instrument is expected to be highly effective in the future.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

A hedging instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Payments or receipts on a
hedging instrument that is determined to be highly effective as a hedge are recognized concurrently with, and in
the same financial category as, the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the fair value of a fair value hedge are
recognized in earnings concurrently with the hedged item. For a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of
changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income and is subsequently transferred to carnings
concurrently with the hedged item, whereas the portion of the changes in fair value that is not effective at
offsetting the hedged exposure is recognized in earnings.

If a hedging instrument ceases to be highly effective as a hedge, is de-designated as a hedging nstrument or is
settled prior to maturity, then the Corporation ceases hedge accounting prospectively for that instrument; for a
cash flow hedge, the gain or loss deferred to that date remains in accumulated other comprehensive income and
is transferred to earnings concurrently with the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the fair value of that
derivative instrument are recognized in earnings.

If the hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures prior to the termination of the related hedging instrument, or
if it is probable that an anticipated transaction will not occur in the originally specified time frame, then the gain
or loss deferred to that date for the related hedging instrument is immediately transferred from accumulated
other comprehensive income to eamnings.

Hedge gains or losses that were recognized in other comprehensive income are added to the initial carrying

amount of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability when:

(i) an anticipated transaction for a non-financial asset or non-financial liability becomes a specific firm
commitment for which fair value hedge accounting is applied or,

(i) a cash flow hedge of an anticipated transaction subsequently results in the recognition of the non-financial
asset or non-financial liability.

(b) A non-hedge derivative instrument is recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value and subsequent
changes in fair value are recorded in earnings.

The Corporation applies seitlement date accounting to the purchases and sales of financial assets. Settlement date
accounting implies the recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the Corporation and the recognition of the
disposal of an asset on the day that it is delivered by the Corporation. Any gain or loss on disposal is also
recognized on that day.

Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities that
are not held for trading are added to the fair value of such assets or liabilities at time of initial recognition.

Foreign Currency Transiation

Assets and liabilities of self-sustaining foreign operations are transtated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange
during the year. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income in share owners’ equity.

Monetary assets and liabilities of integrated foreign operations, as well as non-monetary assets carried at market
value, are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Other non-
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were
acquired or liabilities incurred. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange for
the year; depreciation and amortization are translated at rates of exchange consistent with the assets to which they
relate. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign operations are recognized in earnings.

Transactions undertaken by Canadian operations that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the transaction date. Monetary items and non-monetary items
that are carried at market value arising from a transaction denominated in a foreign currency are adjusted to reflect
the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses on translation of such monetary and non-
monetary items are recognized in earnings.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Future Accounting Changes

The CICA has issued new accounting recommendations for capital disclosures which require disclosure of both
qualitative and guantitative information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the Corporation’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation
beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for disclosure and presentation of financial instruments
which require disclosures of both qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the Corporation is exposed.
These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.

The CICA has also issued new accounting recommendations for measurement and disclosure of inventories which
provide guidance on the determination of cost and its subsequent recognition as an expense, including any
writedown to net realizable value, and on the cost formulas that are used to assign costs to inventories. The
Corporation is unable to determine at this time the effect of adopting these recommendations on earnings or assets of
the Corporation. These recommendations are effective for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2008.

2. Regulatory matters

On March 17, 2006, ATCO Electric received a decision on its General Tariff’ Application for 2005 and 2006 which
was filed with the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“AEUB”) in May 2005. The decision established the amount
of revenue ATCO Electric can recover through its rates for electric distribution and transmission service provided to
its customers for 2005 and 2006. The impact of the decision for 2005 reduced ATCO Electric’s earnings by
$1.3 million and was recorded in the first quarter of 2006. The impact of the decision for the full year 2006, as
compared to the decision for the full year 2005, further reduced ATCO Electric’s earnings by $1.6 million. The
decision also confirmed the return on common equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return
methodology. The rate of return on common equity was 8.93% in 2006.

On January 27, 2006, ATCO Gas received a decision on its general rate application which was filed with the AEUB
in May 2005 for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years. The decision established the amount of revenue ATCO Gas
can recover through distribution rates for natural gas distribution service to its customers over the period of 2005 to
2007. The decision also approved the return on common equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of
return methodology. The rate of return on common equity was 8.93% in 2006 and is 8.51% for 2007. The final
impact of the decision is subject to the outcome of an existing process regarding the pricing of services provided by
ATCO [-Tek.

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for
which decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.

3. TXU Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe”) which had a long term “off take™ agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking
Power, has a 25,5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of contract related to
TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating plant. Following
negotiations with the administrators, an agreement was reached with respect to Barking Power’s claim.




3. TXU Europe settlement (continued)

In settlement of its claim, Barking Power received distributions of £144.5 million (approximately $327 million) in
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $83.1 million, and distributions of £34.8 million (approximately
§71 million) in 2006, of which the Corporation’s share was $18.2 million. Income faxes of approximately
$28.5 million relating to the distributions have been paid.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settiement
is expected to generate eamnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
earnings will be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time that the earnings are
recognized.

On May 31, 2007, £95.0 million of the TXU proceeds, of which the Corporation’s share is $52.7 million, were
applied to Barking Power’s non-recourse long term debt.

4. Income taxes

On June 15, 2007, an amendment to tax legislation pertaining to the taxation of preferred share dividends paid by
corporations received third reading in the House of Commons. The Canada Revenue Agency (*CRA”) has been
assessing corporate tax returns based on this proposed change since January 1, 2003, resulting in a reductton of taxes
paid to the CRA. As this change is now considered to have been substantively enacted, the Corporation recorded a
reduction to current income tax expense of $16.4 million in the second quarter of 2007. Funds generated by
operations increased by $16.4 million, offset by a similar reduction in changes in non-cash working capital, leaving
the Corporation's cash position unchanged.

In the third quarter of 2006, the CRA issued a reassessment for Alberta Power (2000)’s 2001 taxation year. The
CRA’s reassessment treals the proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner generating plant to the Alberta
Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation has made submissions to the CRA
opposing the CRA’s position. The full impact of the reassessment was a $12.4 million increase in interest and
income tax expense, a $12.4 million decrease in earnings (38.0 million recorded in the second quarter of 2006 and
$4.4 million recorded in the third quarter of 2006), and a $28.8 million payment associated with the tax and interest
assessed, paid in the third quarter of 2006. 11 is expected that $16.4 million of this cash payment will be recovered
by reducing income taxes payable through higher capital cost allowance claims in future years.

5. Retained earnings at beginning of period as restated

January 1
2007 2006
Retained earnings at beginning of period as previously reported 51,804.4 $1,721.9
Adjustments to retained earnings to recognize the prior years’ effect of:
(a) the fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset (net of
income taxes) 41.6 -
(b) the fair value of the power generation revenue contract liability associated with
the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset (net of income taxes) (31.6) -
(¢) the change in method of accounting for long term debt and non-recourse long
term debt at amortized cost using the effective interest method (net of income
taxes) 0.6) -
(d) the fair value of receivables (net of income taxes) 0.5 -
Retained carnings at beginning of period as restated 51,813.3 $1,721.9
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6. Interest and other income

Interest and other income for the three months ended June 30, 2007 includes a loss of $12.8 million related 1o the
change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset (see Note 10). This loss is partially offset
by a reduction of $9.9 million 1o the provision for the associated power generation revenue contract liability.

Interest and other income for the six months ended June 30, 2007 includes a gain of $10.1 million related to the
change in fair value of the natural gas purchase contracts derivative asset (see Note 10). This increase is partially
offset by an additional provision of $6.6 million for the associated power generation revenue contract liability.

7. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt

The CICA recommendations regarding the measurement of financial liabilities require the financial liabilities to be
measured at initial recognition, including transaction costs, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment. Accordingly, deferred financing charges have been
recalculated using the effective interest method. Commencing Januvary 1, 2007, in accordance with CICA
recommendations regarding the presentation of financial liabilities, long term debt and non-recourse long term debt
have been reduced by their respective cumulative unamortized balance of deferred financing charges.

Long term debt

Effective June 30
Interest Rate 2007 2006
CU Inc. debentures — unsecured

2001 4.84% due November 2006 4.977% $ - S 1750
2002 4.801% due November 2007 4.913% 50.0 50.0
2000 6.97% due June 2008 7.062% 100.0 100.0
1989 Series 10.20% due November 2009 10.331% 125.0 1250
1990 Series 11.40% due August 2010 11.537% 125.0 125.0
2000 7.05% due June 2011 7.130% 100.0 100.0
2004 5.096% due November 2014 5.162% 100.0 100.0
2002 6.145% due November 2017 6.217% 150.0 150.0
2004 5.432% due January 2019 5.492% 180.0 180.0
1999 6.8% due August 2019 6.861% 300.0 300.0
1990 Second Series 11.77% due November 202( 11.903% 100.0 100.0
2006 4.801% due November 2021 4.854% 160.0 -
1991 Senes 9.92% due April 2022 10.063% 125.0 125.0
1992 Series 9.40% due May 2023 9.511% 100.0 100.0
2004 5.896% due November 2034 5.939% 200.0 200.0
2005 5.183% due November 2035 5.226% 185.0 185.0
2006 5.032% due November 2036 5.072% 160.0 -

CU Inc. other long term obligation, due June 2009,
unsecured 6.000% 4.5 4.5

Canadian Utilities Limited debentures — unsecured
2002 6.14% due November 2012 6.228% 100.0 100.0
Less: Deferred financing charges {12.2) -
2,352.3 2,219.5

ATCO Midstream Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates,
due June 2011, unsecured Floating 25.0 25.0

ATCO Power Canada Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates,
due August 2011, secured by a pledge of cash " Floating 22.0 22.0
$2,399.3 $2,266.5
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7. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)
Non-recourse long term debt

The CICA recommendations pertaining to financial instruments do not permit the presentation of interest rate swaps
in combination with floating rate long term debt to emulate fixed rate long term debt. Consequently, any of the
Corporation’s floating rate non-recourse long term debt that had previously been presented in combination with
interest rate swaps is now presented exclusive of the effect of the interest rate swaps (see Note 10). The comparative
figures have been restated; this change in presentation had no effect on the amount of the Corporation’s non-
recourse long term debt.

Effective June 30
Project Financing Inierest Rate 2007 2006
Barking Power Limited, payable in British pounds:
Term loans, at fixed rates averaging 7.95%, due to 2010
(£20.5 million (2006 — £25.1 million)) 7.95% $ 436 $ 51.8
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2010
(£9.2 million (2006 — £41.2 million)) Floating 19.9 84.9
Osborne Cogeneration Pty Lid., payable in Australian dollars:
Term loan, at Bank Bill rates, due to 2013 "
(8$35.1 million AUD (2006 — $39.4 million AUDY}) Floating 31.6 327
ATCO Power Alberta Limited Partnership (“APALP”):
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2016 " Floating ' 86.5 93.4
Joftre;
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2012 " Floating ¥ 0.5 8.3
Term loan, at LIBOR, due t0 2012 M Floating @ 0.9 14.7
Notes, at fixed rate of 8.59%, due to 2020 8.845% 32.0 32.0
Scotford:
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2014 " Floating @ 42.5 43.8
Term facility, at Canadian Prime Advances, due to 2014 M Floating @ 0.2 0.2
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2014 Floating ' 10.7 11.0
Noles, at fixed rate of 7.93%, due 10 2022 8.302% 258.7 26.5
Muskeg River:
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2014 " Floating @ 325 34.1
Term facility, at Canadian Prime Advances, due to 2014 < Floating ¥ 0.1 0.2
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2014 (" Floating 8.2 8.6
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.56%, due to 2022 7.902% 28.5 30.3
Brighton Beach:
Term loan, at BA rates, due to 2020 ™ Floating @ 19.7 20.6
Term loan, at LIBOR, due to 2020 " Floating @ 17.7 18.5
Construction overrun facility, at BA rates, due to 2020 " Floating 4.8 5.0
Construction overrun facility, at LIBOR, due to 2020 " Floating ¥ 4.4 4.6
Notes, at fixed rate of 6.924%, due to 2024 7.025% 106.4 109.2
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7. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Non-recourse long term debt {continued)

Effective June 30
Project Financing Interest Rale 2007 2006
Cory:

Cost overrun facility, at BA rates, due to 2011 " Floating ®' 2.7 33
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.586%, due to 2025 7.872% 36.0 36.9
Notes, at fixed rate of 7.601%, due to 2026 7.880% 32.0 32.8
Less: Deferred financing charges (7.0 -
5794 703.4
Less: Amounts due within one year 68.9 53.3
$510.5 $650.1

BA — Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate

W The above interest rates have additional margin fees at a weighted average rate of 1.1% (2006 — 1.1%). The

margin fees are subject to escalation.
Floating interest rates have been partially or completely hedged with interest rate swaps (see Note 10).

2
8. Equity preferred shares
CU Inc. equity preferred shares

Authorized and issued

Authonzed: An unlimited number of Series Preferred Shares, issuable in series.

Issued:
June 30
Stated Redemption 2007 2006
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
{dollars)
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares
4.60% Series | $25.00 See below 4,600,000 $115.0 - £ -

On April 18, 2007, CU Inc., a subsidiary corporation, issued $115.0 million Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Shares Series | at a price of $25.00 per share for cash. The dividend rate has been fixed at 4.60%. The net proceeds
of the issue were used in part to redeem $91.8 million of the outstanding Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred
Shares Series Q, R and 8 of ATCO Eleciric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines, subsidiary corporations of CU Inc.,
that are held by Canadian Utilities Limited.

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues are
$106.3 million (2006 - nil).

Redemption privileges

The Series | preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Corporation commencing on June 1, 2012, at the
stated value plus a 4% premium per share for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The
redemplion premium declines by 1% in each succeeding twelve month period unti! June 1, 2016.




8. Equity preferred shares (continued)
Canadian Utilities Limited equity preferred shares
Authorized and issued

Authorized: An unlimited number of Series Second Preferred Shares, issuable in series.

Issued:
June 30
Stated Redemption 2007 2006
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
(dollars)
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares
5.9% Series Q $25.00 Open - Ny - 2,277,675 $ 569
5.3% Series R $25.00 Open - - 2,146,730 53.7
6.6% Serigs S $25.00 Open - - 635,700 159
5.8% Series W $25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0 6,000,000 150.0
6.0% Series X $25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0 6,000,000 150.0
Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares
4.35% Series O $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0 1,600,000 40.0
4.35% Series T $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0 1,600,000 40.0
4.35% Sernies U $25.00 December 2, 2011 800,000 20.0 800,000 20.0
5.25% Series V $25.00 October 3, 2007 4,400,000 110.0 4,400,000 110.0
$510.0 $636.5

On May 18, 2007, Canadian Utilities Limited redeemed $126.5 million of outstanding Cumulative Redeemable
Second Preferred Shares Series (O, R and S at a price of $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends per
share.

The dividends payable on the Series O, T, U and V preferred shares are fixed until the redemption dales specified
above, at which time a new dividend rate may be established by negotiations between Canadian Utilities Limited
and the owners of the shares.

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues are
$516.9 million (2006 - $662.6 miliion).

Redemption privileges

The preferred shares, except for Series W and X, are redeemable on the dates specified above at the option of
Canadian Utilities Limited at the stated value plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

The Series W preferred shares are redeemable commencing on March 1, 2008 at the stated value plus a 4% premium
for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in each
succeeding 12 month period until March 1, 2012.

The Series X preferred shares are redeemable commencing June 1, 2008 at the stated value plus a 4% premium for
the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in each
succeeding 12 month period until June 1, 2012,




9. Class A and Class B shares

There were 81,601,024 (2006 — 82,245,786) Class A non-voling shares and 43,831,846 (2006 — 44,009,284) Class B
common shares outstanding on June 30, 2007. In addition, there were 1,323,800 options to purchase Class A non-
voting shares outstanding at June 30, 2007 under the Corporation’s stock option plan. From July 1, 2007, to July 24,
2007, no stock options were granted or cancelled, 800 stock options were exercised, 5,500 Class B common shares
were converled to Class A non-voting shares and no Class A non-voting shares were purchased under the
Corporation’s normal course issuer bid.

The average number of shares used 1o calculate earnings per share are as follows:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted average shares outstanding 125,421,108 126,769,671 125,405,855 126,859,037
Effect of dilutive stock options 533,297 542911 511,738 564,411
Weighled average diluted shares outstanding 125,954,405 127,312,582 125,917,593 127,423 448

10. Risk management and financial instruments

The Corporation is exposed to changes in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The
Power Generation segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the price of electricity in the Province of
Alberta and the United Kingdom and the Global Enterprises segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the
price of natural gas liquids. In conducting its business, the Corporation may use various instruments, including
forward contracts, swaps and options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates
and commodity prices. All such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

At June 30, 2007, the following derivalive instruments were outstanding: interest rate swaps that hedge interest rate
risk on the variable future cash flows associated with a portion of non-recourse long term debt, foreign currency
forward contracts that hedge foreign currency risk on the future cash flows associated with specific firm
commitments or anticipated transactions and certain natural gas purchase contracts.

The derivative assets and liabilities comprise the following:

June 30
2007

Derivative assets — current:
Interest rate swap agreements $ 05
Derivative assets — non-crrrent:
Natural gas purchase contracts $69.1
Interest rate swap agreements 0.6

$69.7
Derivative liabilities — current:
Interest rate swap agreements 510
Derivative liabilities — non-current:
Interest rate swap agreements $18
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10. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Corporation has converted variable rate non-recourse long term debt to fixed rate debt through the following
interest rate swap agreements:

Swap Fixed Notional Principal
Project Interest Variable Debt Maturity June 30
Financing Rate Interest Rate Date 2007 2006
Usbome:
($33.3 million AUD (2006 — Bank Bill Rate
$37.4 million AUDY)) 7.3325% in Australia December 2013 $ 301 3310
APALP: 7.54% 90 day BA November 2008 1.9 32
7317% 80 day BA December 2008 2.7 4.5
7.50% 6 month LIBOR  December 2011 79.0 85.7
Joftre: 7.286% 90 day BA September 2012 219 26.1
Scotford: 5.212% 90 day BA September 2008 51.6 56.7
Muskeg River: 5.287% 90 day BA December 2007 39.9 427
Brighton Beach: 5.8367% 90 day BA June 2009 8.7 9.2
6.575% 90 day BA March 2019 35.2 37.0
Cory: 6.346% 90 day BA June 2011 24 3.0
$5273.4 £299.1

BA — Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBCR - London Interbank Offered Rate

' The above swap fixed interest rates include any long term debt margin fees; the margin fees are subject to

escalation (Note 7).

The Corporation has fixed interest rales, either directly or through interest rate swap agreements, on 98% (2006 —
96%) of total long term debt and non-recourse long term debt.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The Corporation has exposure to changes in the carrying values of its foreign operations, including assets and
liabilities, as a result of changes in exchange rates. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign
operations are included in the foreign currency translation adjustment account in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign operations are recognized in earnings.

The Cerporation has entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to fix the exchange rate on certain
planned equipment expenditures and operational cash flows denominated in U.S. dollars and Euros. At June 30,
2007, the contracts consist of purchases of $13.6 million U.S. (2006 — purchases of $2.3 million U S, and sales of
1.7 million Euros).

Natural gas purchase contracts and associated power generation revenue contract liability

The Corporation has long term contracts for the supply of natural gas for certain of its power generation projects.
Under the terms of certain of these contracts, the volume of natural gas that the Corporation is entitled to take is in
excess of the natural gas required to generate power. As the excess volume of natural gas can be sold, ihe
Corporation is required {o designate these entire contracts as derivative instruments. The Corporation recognized a
non-current derivative asset of $59.0 million on January 1, 2007; thereafter, the Corporation will record mark-to-
market adjustments through earnings as the fair values of these contracts change with changes in future natural gas
prices. These natural gas purchase contracts mature in November 2014,




10, Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

As all but the excess volume of natural gas is committed to the Corporation’s power generation obligations, the
Corporation could not recognize the entire fair values of these natural gas purchase contracts in its revenues.
Consequently, on January 1, 2007, the Corporation recognized a provision for a power generation revenue contract
in the amount of $44.8 million; thereafter, the Corporation will record adjustments to the power generation revenue
contract liability concurrently with the mark-to-market adjustments for the natural gas purchase contracts derivative
assel. This power generation revenue contract liability is included in deferred credits in the consolidated balance
sheet,

The mark-to-market adjustment for the derivative asset and the corresponding adjustment for the associated power
generation revenue contract liability decreased earnings by $2.0 million, net of income taxes, for the three months
ended June 30, 2007 and increased earnings by $2.5 million, net of income taxes, for the six months ended June 30,
2007,

Credit risk

For cash and short term investments and accounts receivable, credit risk represents the carrying amount on the
consolidated balance sheet. Accounts receivable credit risk is reduced by a large and diversified customer base,
requirement of letters of credit, and, for regulated operations other than Alberta Power (2000), the ability to recover
an estimate for doubtful accounts through approved customer rates.

Derivative credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty to a contract fails to perform according to the
terms and conditions of that contract. Derivative credit risk is minimized by dealing with large, credit-worthy
counterparties in accordance with established credit approval policies.

Fair value of non-derivative financial instruments

The carrying values and fair values of the Corporation’s non-derivative financial instruments are as follows:

June 30
2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

Assets

Cash and short term investments <"’ $ 8130 $ 8130 $ 904.0 $ %040
Accounts receivable "} 292.8 292.8 251.1 251.1
Liahilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ® 3170 7.0 276.0 276.0
Long term debt 2,399.3 2,661.2 2,266.5 2,553.5
Non-recourse long term debt 5794 608.7 7034 731.2

@ Recorded at cost. Fair value approximates the carrying amounts due to the short term nature of the financial

instruments and negligibie credit losses.

Recorded at cost. Fair value approximates the carrying amounts due to the short term nature of the financial
instruments.

Recorded at amortized cost.  Fair values are determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar
issues. Where the market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis based on the Corporation's current borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.

2)

(3}




10.

Risk management and financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of the Corporation’s derivative financial instruments are as follows:

June 30
2007 2006
Fair Value Fair Value
Notional Receivable Notional Receivable

Principal " (Payable)®  Maturity  Principal ) (Payable) ¥  Maturity

Interest rate swaps $273.4 $(1.7y 2007-2019 $299.1 534y 2007-2019
Foreign currency

forward contracts $ 14.6 $ - 2007-2008 $ 51 $ - 2006
Natural gas purchase

contracts N/A® $69.1 2014 N/A N/A@ N/AW
)

@

)

4

11.

The notional principal is nof recorded in the consolidated financial statements as it does not represent amounts
that are exchanged by the counterparties.

The notional amount for the natural gas purchase contracts is the maximum volumes that can be purchased
over the terms of the contracts.

Fair values for the intevest rate swaps and the foreign currency forward contracts have been estimated using
period-end market rates, and fair values for the natural gas purchase confracts have been estimated using
period-end forward market prices for natural gas. These fair values approximate the amount that the
Corporation would either pay or receive to settle the contract at June 30.

In accordance with the CICA recommendations for financial instruments, disclosures not required in financial
statements for periods prior to January 1, 2007 need not be provided on a comparative basis.

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of the Corporation is comprised of three components: the unrealized gains
and losses on effective cash flow hedging instruments, the unrealized gains and losses on financial assets that are
available for sale, and the foreign currency translation adjustment relating to self-sustaining foreign operations.
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11. Other comprehensive income {continued)

Changes in the components of accumulated OCI are summarized below:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
2007 2006 2007 2006
Accumulated QCI at beginning of period:
Cash flow hedge losses " $ (6.9) s - s - 5 -
Financial assets available for sale <’ 0.1 - - -
Foreign currency translation adjustment 34 (18.2) 3.1 (18.2)
(34) (18.2) 3.1 (18.2)
Adjustment to accumulated OCI at beginning of period
due fo change in method o(f accounting for:
Cash flow hedge losses ¥ - - (7.4) -
Financial assets available for sale - - 0.1 -
- - (7.3) -
OCI for the period:
Changes in fair values of cash flow hedges 31 - 35 -
Transfers of cash flow hedge losses to earnings ‘' - - 0.1 -
i - 3.6
Foreign currency translation adjustment (13.7) 1.5 (13.4) 1.5
(10.6) 15 9.8) 1.5
Accumulated OCI at end of period:
Cash flow hedge losses ¥ (3.8) - (3.8} -
Financial assets available for sale 0.1 - 0.1 -
Foreign currency translation adjustment (10.3) (16.7) (10.3) (16.7)
$(14.0) $(16.7) $(14.0) $(16.7)

)
2
3}
)
&

Net of income taxes of 83.1 million.

Net of income taxes of nil.

Net of income taxes of $3.2 million.

Net of income taxes of $(1.5) million and 3(1.6) million, respectively.
Net of income taxes of 31.6 million and 31.6 million, respectively.

12. Employee future benefits

In the three months ended June 30, 2007, net expense of $3.7 million (2006 — $3.8 million) was recognized tor
pension benefit plans and net expense of $1.4 million (2006 — $1.3 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.

In the six months ended June 30, 2007, net expense of $7.3 million (2006 — $7.7 million} was recognized for
pension benefit plans and net expense of $2.7 million (2006 — $2.5 million) was recognized for other post
employment benefit plans.
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13. Segmented information

Segmented results — Three months ended June 30

2007 Power Global Corporate Intersegment
2006 Utilities Generation Enterprises and Other Eliminations Consolidated
(Unaudited)
Revenues — external $ 264.6 $ 1756 $119.7 $ 04 b3 - $ 560.3
£ 2401 $ 1805 $142.5 $ 03 5 - $ 563.4
Revenues — intersegment 6.1 - 28.4 3.0 (37.5) -
6.2 - 30.7 2.8 (39.7) -
Revenues $ 2707 $§ 175.6 $148.1 $ 34 $(37.5) $ 560.3
$ 2463 § 1805 $173.2 $ 3.1 5 (39.7) § 5634
Earnings attributable to § 283 § 272 $ 186 $§ 78 $ (0.8) $ 811
Class A and Class B shares $ 179 $ 256 3 28.6 $ (0.9) $ (1.5 $ 702
Segmented results — Six months ended June 30
2007 Power Global Corporate Intersegment
2006 Utilities Generation Enterprises and Other Eliminations Consolidated
(Unaudited}
Revenues — external $ 603.0 $ 3815 $272.6 $ 08 $ - $1,257.9
$ 5628 § 3703 $271.7 3 06 $ - $1,205.4
Revenues — intersegment 12.4 - 574 59 (75.7 -
12.2 - 55.6 5.5 (73.3) -
Revenues § 6154 $ 3815 $330.0 $ 67 $(75.7) $1,257.9
£ 575.0 $ 3703 $327.3 $ 6.1 $(73.3) 31,2054
Earnings attributable to § 774 s 706 $ 614 $ 890 $ (l1.6) § 2158
Class A and Class B shares § 583 $ 530 $ 516 $ 29 3 (2.9) $ 1571
Total assets $3,842.7 $2,224.4 $237.8 $613.0 5113.6 $7,031.5
$3,566.5 $2,197.3 $287.9 $702.9 $ 483 $6,802.9
U Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.
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LU News Release

An ATCO Company
CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
Corporate Head Office: 1400, 909 - 11 Avenue 5.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1NG Tel: (403} 292-7500

FILE NO. 8234744

For Immediate Release
July 16, 2007

Canadian Utilities Limited to Release Second Quarter Results Thursday, July 26, 2007

CALGARY, Alberta — Canadian Utilities Limited (TSX: CU, CU.X) will release its financial results for the second quarter ended
June 30, 2007 on Thursday, July 26, 2007. The news release will be distributed via www.marketwire.com and the resuilts,
including Financial Statements and Management's Discussion & Analysis will be posted on www.canadian-utilities.com.

Canadian Utilities Limited is part of the ATCO Group of Companies. ATCO Group, an Alberta based worldwide organization
of companies with assets of approximately $7.9 billion and maore than 7,000 employees, is comprised of three main business
divisions; Power Generation; Utilities (natural gas and electricity transmission and distribution} and Global Emterprises, with
companies active in industrial manufacturing, technology, logistics and energy services. More information about Canadian Utilities
Limited can be found on its website www.canadian-utilities.com.

For further information, please contact:

K.M. {Karen) Watson

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Canadian Utilities Limited

(403} 292-7502

Forward-Looking Information:

Certain stataments contained in this news release may constitute forward-looking staternents. Forward-looking statements are ofien, but nol aways, identified by the use of words such as
‘anticipate”, “pian", ‘expect”, "may”, *will", “intend”, “should”, and simifar sxpressions. These staternents involve known and urknown risks, uncanainties and cther factors that may cause actual
rasults or avents {o differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking st its. The Corporation believes thar the expectations reflacted in the forward-looking statements ara
reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expeciations will prove 1o be correct and such forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

The Corporation's actual results could differ materally from those anticipaled in these forward-iooking statements as a result of regutatory decisions, compelitive faclors in the industries in which
the Corporation gperates, pravailing economic conditions, and other factors, meny of which are beyond tha controf of the Corporation.

Tha forwarg-looking statements contained in this naws relsase reprasent the Corporations” expeciations as of the date hareof, and are subject to change after such date. The Corporation
disclaims any intention or obligation 1o updale or revise any forward-fooking siatements whather as a rasult of new informaiion, lutura events or otherwise, except as required under applicable
secuntias regulalions.




FILE NO. 82-34744

CUsw News Release

An ATCO Company

CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
Corporate Head Office; 1400, 909 - 11 Avenue S.W., Galgary, Alberta T2R 1NG Tel: {403) 292-7500

For Immediate Release

July 26, 2007

Canadian Utilities Limited Eligible Dividends

CALGARY, Alberta — The Board of Directors of Canadian Utilities Limited has declared the following quarterly dividends.

TSX Stock Dividend Per Record Date Payment Date
Shares Symbol Share ($) (2007) {2007)
Class A non-voting Ccu 0.315 08-Aug 01-Sep
Class B common Ccux 0.315 08-Aug 01-Sep
Series W 5.80% CUPRA 0.3625 08-Aug 01-Sep
Series X  6.00% CU.PR.B 0.3750 08-Aug 01-Sep

These dividends are eligible dividends for Canadian income tax purposes.

Canadian Utilities Limited is part of the ATCO Group of Companies. ATCO Group, an Alberta based worldwide organization
of companies with assets of approximately $7.8 billion and more than 7,000 employees, is comprised of three main business
divisions: Power Generation; Utilities (natural gas and electricity transmission and distribution) and Global Enterprises, with
companies active in industrial manufacturing, technology, logistics and energy services. More information about Canadian Utilities
Limited can be found on its website www.canadian-utilities.com.

For further information, please contact:

K.M. (Karen) Watson

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Canadian Utilities Limited

(403) 292-7502

Forward-Locking Information:

Certain stalements containgd in this mews release may constituta forward-looking siatements. Forward-looking statements are often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as
“anticipate”, “plan”, “expect”, “may”, “will", “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statemenis invalve known and unknown risks, uncerlainties and other factovs that may cause actual
rasults or evenis lo differ materally from those anticipated in such lorward-fooking statements. The Corporation believas thal the expectations reflecled in the forward-looking statements are
reasonabie, but no assurance can be given thal these expectations will prove (0 be correct and such lorwand-looking statements should nof be unduly relied upon.

Tha Corparation's aclual resufts could differ matanially from those anlicipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, compelilive factors in the industrias in which
the Corporation operales, pravailing economic conditions, and other factors, many of which are beyond the conlrol of the Corporation.

The forward-looking statements contained in this news release neprasent the Corporations’ expaciations as of the date hereol, and are subject lo change after such date. The Corporation
disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statemenis whether as a resull of new information, future events or ctherwise, excep! as required under applicable
sacurilies reguiations.
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Canadian Utilities Reports Increased Second Quarter Earnings

CALGARY, Alberta - Canadian Utilities Limited (TSX: CU, CU.X) reported earnings of $81.1 million ($0.65 per share) for the
three months ended June 30, 2007, compared to earnings of $70.2 million ($0.56 per share) for the same three months of 20086.
Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007, were $215.8 million {$1.72 per share) compared to earnings of $157.1 million
{$1.24 per share) for the same six months in 2006.

Financial Summary For the Three For the Six
Months Ended Months Ended
June 30 June 30
2007 2006 2007 2006
{$ Millions except per share data)
(unaudited)
022188 1573
... Earnings, VTS 1- SOOI £ ¢, 13- S
O 2.4 4101 - . .....0634 _1,287.9 12054
..Funds generated by operations ™ . ......833 1361 . ... 3955 3418

' This measure is cash generated from operations before changes in non-cash working capital and is not defined by Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. This measure may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to:

+ $16.4 million adjustment relating to the 2007 change in the taxation of preferred share dividends. In the second quarter of
2007, the federal government amended legislation on the taxation of preferred share dividends paid. This change, which was
retroactive to 2003, resulted in a reduction in income tax expense that was recorded in the second quarter of 2007. As the
Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) has been assessing corporate 1ax returns based on this proposed change since January 1,
2003, the recently enacted change will not affect the Corporation's cash position. (“Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share
Dividends™),
colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas; and
an interest and income tax expense that was recorded by Alberta Power (2000} in the second quarter of 2006. This adjustment,
which reduced earnings in the second quarter of 2006 by $8.0 million, pertained to a CRA assessment on the taxation of
proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner generating plant in 2001 (*H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment™).

This increase was partially ofiset by:
= $11.8 million adjustrnent in 2006 to reflect decreased federal and provincial taxes and rates; and
« the timing and lower demand for natural gas storage capacity sold, lower storage fees and lower volumes and margins for
natural gas liquids (*NGL"} in ATCO Midstream.

[ continued |




Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to:
« Change in the Taxation of Preferred Share Dividends;
« colder temperatures, custormner growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas;
+ the timing and higher demand for natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream; and
= H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment in 2006.

This increase was partially offset by:
+ $11.8 million adjustment in 2006 1o reflect decreased federa! and provincial taxes and rates; and
* higher operating and maintenance expenses in ATCO Electric, pending finalization of 2007 and 2008 customer rates.

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2007, decreased primarily due to:

» lower NGL revenue due to lower prices and volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a “no margin” basis, lower prices
and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction, and the timing and lower demand of natural gas storage capacity
sold and lower storage fees in ATCO Midstream; and

» lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power's U.K. operations.

This decrease was partially ofiset by:
« impact of 2007 interim customer rate increases for ATCO Electric approved by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board in
December 2006; and
+ colder temperatures, customer growth and higher sales per customer in ATCO Gas.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to:
= the timing and higher demand of natural gas storage capacity sold and higher storage fees in ATCO Midstream; and
* impact of 2007 interim customer rate increase for ATCO Electric approved by the AEUB in December 2006.

This increase was partially offset by:
« lower NGL revenue due 1o lower prices and lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold on a *no margin™ basis and
lower prices and volumes of natural gas processed for NGL extraction in ATCO Midstream; and
* |ower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Power's UK. operations.

Funds generated by operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, increased primarily due to increased
earnings.

Other Recent Highlights include:

« ATCO Electric has applied to the AEUB for approval to build and operate a new 240-kV electric transmission line in northwest
Alberta. This 235 kilometre transmission line starts in the Wabasca area and ends in the Peace River region and has an
estimated cost of $210 million. ATCO Electric anticipates completing the project by 2010 and plans to begin construction in
late 2007.

= ATCO Power will build a second natural gas-fired 45 megawatt (MW) power plant in Valleyview, Alberta. This "peaking”
facility is designed to solidify provincial grid stability while providing quick access to additional power and is expected to be
completed in 2008.

+ UQSUIQ Corporation, a joint venture between ATCO Frontec and Inuit owned companies in the Arctic, has been awarded a
five year contract renewal to lease and operate the bulk fuel storage facility, the pipeline distribution system and the municipal
fuel distribution system in lgaluit, Nunavut.

+ ATCOQO Frontec has been awarded five contracts to provide multiple support services for up to five years at the Kandahar
Airfield in Afghanistan for the more than 10,000 troops serving NATO's International Security Assistance Force.

Canadian Utilities Limited’'s consolidated financial statements and management's discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, will be available on Canadian Utilities’ website (www.
canadian-utilities.com) or via SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or can be requested from the Corporation.

[ continued ]




Canadian Utilities Limited is part of the ATCO Group of Companies. ATCO Group, an Alberta based worldwide organization of companies
with assets of approximately $7.8 bilion and mocre than 7,000 employees, is comprised of three main business divisions: Power
Generation; Utilities {natural gas and electricity transmission and distribution) and Global Enterprises, with companies active in industrial
manufacturing, technclogy, logistics and energy services. More information about Canadian Utilities Limited can be found on its website
www.canadian-utilities.com.

For further information, please contact:

K.M. (Karen) Watson

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Canadian Utilities Limited

{403) 292-7502

Forward-Loaking Information:

Centain statements containad in this news mlaase may constitute lorward-looking statements. Forward-fooking statements are often, bul not alays, identified by the usa of words such as
“anticipate®, ‘plan®, “axpect”, “may", ‘wili", “intend”, “should”, end similar exp ions. These involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual
results or gvants to differ materally from those anticipated in such forwardg-ooking siatemants. The Corporation baligves that the expeciations reflacted in the forward-fooking statements are
reasonable, bul no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to ba correct and such forward-locking statements showld not be unduly refied upon.

The Corporation’s actual results could difier materially from those anticipatad In ihese forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decislons, compaetitive factors in the indusinies in which
the Corporation operatas. prevailing economic conditions, and other faclars. many of which ara beyond the control of the Corporation.

The lorward-fooking statements contained in this rews release represent the Corporations’ expectations as of Ihe dale hereof, and ame subject to change after such date. The Corporation
disciaims any intention or abligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as a rasult of new information, fulure events or olharwise, axcep! as required undar gpplicable
secunlies regulations.




